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Notice to Readers: 

The financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun 

Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the 

statement has been translated from Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the 

context or interpretation in the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail . 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

 

The Board o f Directors and Shareho lders  

Asia Po lymer Corporat ion  

Opinion 

 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Asia Polymer Corporation (the “Company”), 

which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the statements of 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.(collectively referred to as 

the “financial statements”) 

 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance and its cash 

flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 

Reports by Securities Issuers. 
 

Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 in accordance 

with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public 

Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. We conducted our audit 

of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with the Regulations 
Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants, Rule No. 

1090360805 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China on February 25, 

2020, and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The Norm of 

Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

Key audit matters related to the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 

are stated as follows: 
 

Revenue Recognition - Sales Revenue from Specific Customers 

 

The amount of sales revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020 was NT$5,514,958 thousand, which 
was approximately 16.16% lower than the sales revenue for the year ended December 31, 2019 of 

NT$6,578,064 thousand. Nevertheless, the sales revenue from specific customers has grown significantly 

compared to the average change trend of total sales revenue. Sales revenue from these specific customers 
was NT$2,316,082 thousand, which accounted for approximately 42.00% of net operating revenue. 
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Therefore, recognition of revenue from these specific customers has been identified as a key audit matter. 

 
The audit procedures performed in response to the risk were as follows: 

 

1. We obtained an understanding of the design and implementation of internal controls about these 
specific customers and tested if these controls were performed effectively. Such controls include 

credit assessments of customers, revenue recognition and receivables collection. 

 
2. We sampled and inspected purchase orders from these specific customers, shipping confirmations 

and receivables collection receipts in order to verify the accuracy of sales revenue. 

 

3. We reviewed sales returns and discounts recognized and the amounts received in subsequent periods 
to assess for any abnormalities. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, 

and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Those charged with governance (including the audit committee) are responsible for overseeing the 

Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, 

we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

 
2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
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based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

 
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible 
for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with statements that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan, Republic of China 

 

 

CPA, Cheng-Chun Chiu  

  

CPA, Hsiu-Chun Huang 

 
Financial Supervisory Commission 
Approved Document No. Chin Guan Cheng Liu Zi 
No.0930160267 

 Financial Supervisory Commission 
Approved Document No. Tai Tsai Cheng Liu Zi  
No.0920123784 

 

March 16, 2021 
Notice to Readers: 

The financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA 

Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the statement has been translated from 

Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or interpretation in the English version, the 
Chinese version shall prevail . 
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

Balance Sheet  

Decem ber  31,2020 and 2019 

 (In  Thousands of New Tai wan  Dol lar s)  

 

    Decem ber  31,2020  Decem ber  31,2019  

Code  ASSETS  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Current assets         

1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4 and 6)    $ 274,142     2    $ 587,400     4 

1110  Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - current (Note 4 and 

7) 

 

   1,007,300     6     2,585,296     15 
1120  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

-current (Note 4 and 8) 

 

   86,368     -     73,352     - 

1170  Accounts receivable (Notes4, 5 and 10)     545,372     3     591,523     4 

1180  Accounts receivable - related parties (Note 4, 5, 10 and 28)     209,875     1     184,772     1 

1200  Other receivables (Note 4)     2,515     -     394     - 

1210  Other receivables-related parties (Note 4 and 28)     1,965     -     3,977     - 

130X  Inventories (Note 4, 5 and 11)     294,846     2     349,206     2 

1410  Prepayment      124,228     1     137,953     1 

1470  Other current assets     110     -     110     - 

11XX  Total current assets     2,546,721     15     4,513,983     27 

                       

  Non-current assets         
1517  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 

non-current (Note 4 and 8) 

 

   3,252,937     19     2,288,615     14 

1535  Financial assets at amortised cost - non-current (Note 4 and 9)     42,648     -     -     - 

1550  Investments accounted for using the equity method (Notes 4, 5, 11 and 

28)  

 

   7,162,418     43     6,191,020     37 

1600  Property, plant and equipment (Note 4 and 13)     3,257,029     19     3,276,337     19 

1755  Right-of-use assets (Note 4 and 14)     424     -     -     - 

1760  Investment properties (Note 4 and 15)     450,619     3     458,262     3 

1840  Deferred tax assets (note 4 and 24)     82,118     1     92,420     - 

1990  Other non-current assets (Note 4)     22,183     -     35,531     - 

15XX  Total non-current assets     14,270,376     85     12,342,185     73 
                       

1XXX  Total assets    $ 16,817,097     100    $ 16,856,168     100 

           

Code  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY         

  Current liabilities         

2100  Short-term borrowings (Note 16)    $ 700,000     4    $ 1,100,000     6 

2110  Short-term notes and bills payable (Note 16)     -     -     649,944     4 

2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - current (Note 4 

and 7) 

 

   3,912     -     -     - 

2170  Accounts payable (Note 17)     238,363     2     134,278     1 

2180  Accounts payable - related parties (Note 17 and 28)     15,630     -     15,667     - 

2219  Other accounts payable (Note 18)     194,634     1     183,265     1 

2220  Other accounts payable-related parties (Note 28)     49,982     1     166,705     1 
2230  Current income tax liabilities (Note 4 and 24)     185,963     1     146,105     1 

2280  Lease liabilities - current (Note 4 and 14)     5,981     -     5,496     - 

2365  Refund liabilities - current (Note 19)     5,899     -     5,899     - 

2399  Other current liabilities (Note 22)     29,874     -     12,479     - 

21XX  Total current liabilities     1,430,238     9     2,419,838     14 

                       

  Non-current liabilities         

2540  Long-term borrowings (Note 16)     3,050,000     18     3,950,000     24 

2570  Deferred tax liabilities (Note 4 and 24)     42,108     -     52,655     - 

2580  Lease liabilities - non-current (Note 4 and 14)     18,946     -     24,501     - 

2640  Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (Note 4 and 20)     155,057     1     165,868     1 
2670  Other non-current liabilities     11,203     -     13,486     - 

25XX  Total non-current liabilities     3,277,314     19     4,206,510     25 

                       

2XXX    Total liabilities     4,707,552     28     6,626,348     39 

                       

  EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Note 4, 8, 

21 and 24) 

 

       

  Share capital         

3110  Ordinary shares     5,821,018     35     5,543,827     33 

3200  Capital surplus     33,272     -     24,400     - 

  Retained earnings         
3310  Legal reserve     1,798,210     11     1,713,152     10 

3320  Special reserve     565,379     3     565,379     4 

3350  Unappropriated earnings     2,890,180     17     2,507,082     15 

3300  Total retained earnings     5,253,769     31     4,785,613     29 

3400  Other equity     1,001,486     6   (  124,020 )   (  1 ) 

3XXX  Total equity     12,109,545     72     10,229,820     61 

                       

  Total liabilities and equity    $ 16,817,097     100    $ 16,856,168     100 

 
.  The accompanying notes are an  integral par t of the financia l  statemen ts.  

 Notice to Readers: 

The financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the 

convenience of reading, the statement has been translated from Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or interpretation in the English 

version, the Chinese version shall prevail. 
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

STATEMENTS OF COMPRE HENSIVE INCOME  

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBE R 31,  20 20 AND 2019  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dol lar s,  Except  Earn ings Per  Share)  

 

    2020  2019 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

4100  Net sale revenue (Note 4, 22 

and 28)    $ 5,514,958     100    $ 6,578,064     100 

                       

5110  Operating costs (Note 4, 11, 20, 

23 and 28)     4,405,880     80     5,560,296     85 

                       

5900  Gross profit     1,109,078     20     1,017,768     15 

                       

  Operating expenses (Note 20, 

23 and 28)         

6100  Selling expenses     87,575     2     108,585     1 

6200  Administrative expenses     106,436     2     115,143     2 

6300  Research and 
development expenses     5,424     -     5,126     - 

6000  Total operating expenses     199,435     4     228,854     3 

                       

6900  Net operating profit     909,643     16     788,914     12 

                       

  Non-operating income and 

expenses (Note 4, 12, 23 

and 28)         

7100  Interest income     4,031     -     9,268     - 

7010  Other incomes     158,029     3     139,952     2 

7020  Other gains and losses     73,462     2     25,568     1 

7510  Interest expenses   (  42,537 )   (  1 )   (  56,163 )   (  1 ) 

7060  Share of profit of 

associates     178,127     3     75,400     1 

7000  Total non-operating 

income and expenses     371,112     7     194,025     3 

                       

7900  Profit before income tax     1,280,755     23     982,939     15 

                       

7950  Income tax expenses (Note 4 

and 24)     177,168     3     161,918     3 

                       

8200  Net profit for the year     1,103,587     20     821,021     12 

 

(Continued)  
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(Continued)  

 

    2020  2019 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Other comprehensive income 

(Note 4, 12, 20, 21 and 24)         

8310  Items that will not be 

reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss:         

8311  Remeasurement of 

defined benefit plans   ( $ 608 )     -    $ 5,646     - 

8316  Unrealised gains (losses) 

from investments in 

equity instruments 

measured at fair value 

through other 

comprehensive income     1,011,472     18     99,195     2 

8330      Share of the other 

comprehensive income 

(loss) of associates 

accounted for using the 

equity method     64,833     1     27,596     - 

8349      Income tax relating to 

items that will not be 

reclassified 

subsequently to profit or 

loss   (  3,332 )     -   (  60 )     - 

       1,072,365     19     132,377     2 

8360  Items that may be 

reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss:         

8361      Exchange differences on 

translating foreign 

operations     41,058     1   (  192,308 )   (  3 ) 

8380      Share of the other 

comprehensive income 

(loss) of associates 

accounted for using the 

equity method   (  5,315 )     -   (  8,821 )     - 

8399  Income tax relating to 

items that may be 

reclassified 

subsequently to profit 

or loss   (  8,212 )     -     38,462     1 

       27,531     1   (  162,667 )   (  2 ) 

8300      Other comprehensive loss 

for the year(net of 

income tax) 

    1,099,896     20   (  30,290 )     - 

                       

(Continued)  
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(Continued)  

 
    2020  2019 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

8500  Total comprehensive income 

for the year    $ 2,203,483     40    $ 790,731     12 

                       

  Earning per share (Note 25)         

9710  Basic     $ 1.90      $ 1.41   

9810  Diluted    $ 1.89      $ 1.41   
 

The accompanying notes are an  integral  part  of the financial  sta temen ts.  

(Concluded) 
 

 
Notice to Readers: 

The financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA 
Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the statement has been translated from 

Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or interpretation in the English version, the 

Chinese version shall prevail. 
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBE R 31,  20 20 AND 2019 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dol lar s)  
    Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company (Note 4, 8, 20 and 23)   

                Other equity items   

                  Unrealized Gain   
                Exchange  (Loss) on Financial   
    Share Capital    Retained earnings  Differences on  Assets at Fair Value    Translating 

Code  
   

Share (In Thousands)  Ordinary Share  Capital Surplus  Legal Reserve  Special reserve  
Unappropriated 

Earnings  
Translating Foreign 

Operations   
 Through Other 

Comprehensive Income  Total equity 

A1  Balance at January 1, 2019     554,382    $ 5,543,827    $ 19,619    $ 1,684,469    $ 565,379    $ 1,851,499   ( $ 59,292 )   ( $ 1,065 )    $ 9,604,436 
                                                
A3  Effect of retrospective application     -     -     -     -     -   (  855 )     -     -   (  855 ) 
                                                
A5  Balance at January 1, 2019 as restated     554,382     5,543,827     19,619     1,684,469     565,379     1,850,644   (  59,292 )   (  1,065 )     9,603,581 

                                                
  Appropriation of the 2018 earnings                   
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     28,683     -   (  28,683 )     -     -     - 
B5  Cash dividends distributed     -     -     -     -     -   (  166,315 )     -     -   (  166,315 ) 
                                                
C3  Reclassification of past dividends to capital surplus     -     -     3,087     -     -     -     -     -     3,087 
                                                
C7  Changes in capital surplus from investments in 

associates accounted for using the equity method 
 

   -     -     1,694     -     -     24,779     -   (  27,737 )   (  1,264 ) 
                                                
D1  Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2019     -     -     -     -     -     821,021     -     -     821,021 

                                                
D3  Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year 

ended December 31, 2019, net of income tax 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     4,063   (  162,667 )     128,314   (  30,290 ) 
                                                
D5  Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 

ended December 31, 2019 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     825,084   (  162,667 )     128,314     790,731 
                                                
Q1  Disposals of investments in equity instruments 

designated as at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

 

   -     -     -     -     -     1,573     -   (  1,573 )     - 
                                                
Z1  Balance at December 31, 2019     554,382     5,543,827     24,400     1,713,152     565,379     2,507,082   (  221,959 )     97,939     10,229,820 
                                                
  Appropriation of the 2019 earnings                   
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     85,058     -   (  85,058 )     -     -     - 
B5  Cash dividends distributed     -     -     -     -     -   (  332,630 )     -     -   (  332,630 ) 

B9  Share dividends distributed     27,719     277,191     -     -     -   (  277,191 )     -     -     - 
                                                
C3  Reclassification of past dividends to capital surplus     -     -     901     -     -     -     -     -     901 
                                                
C7  Changes in capital surplus from investments in 

associates accounted for using the equity method 
 

   -     -     7,971     -     -   (  26,873 )     -     26,873     7,971 
                                                
D1  Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2020     -     -     -     -     -     1,103,587     -     -     1,103,587 
                                                
D3  Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year 

ended December 31, 2020, net of income tax 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     1,263     27,531     1,071,102     1,099,896 
                                                

D5  Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 
ended December 31, 2020 

 
   -     -     -     -     -     1,104,850     27,531     1,071,102     2,203,483 

                                                

Z1  Balance at December 31, 2020     582,101    $ 5,821,018    $ 33,272    $ 1,798,210    $ 565,379    $ 2,890,180   ( $ 194,428 )    $ 1,195,914    $ 12,109,545 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Notice to Readers: 

The financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the statement has been translated from Chinese to English. If there is any difference 
regarding the context or interpretation in the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail. 
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBE R 31,  20 20 AND 2019 

(In  Thousands of New Taiwan  Dol lar s)  

Code    2020  2019 

  Cash flow from operating activities     

A10000  Income before income tax    $ 1,280,755    $ 982,939 

A20010  Adjustments for:     

A20100       Depreciation expense     312,201     301,610 

A20200       Amortization expense     35     35 

A20400       Net loss (gain) on financial assets or   

      liabilities at fair value through  

      profit or loss   (  88 )   (  43,051 ) 

A20900       Interest expenses     42,537     56,163 

A21200  Interest income   (  4,031 )   (  9,268 ) 

A21300       Dividend income   (  103,685 )   (  82,778 ) 

A22400       Share of profit of associates   (  178,127 )   (  75,400 ) 

A23200       Loss (gain) on disposal of  

      investments accounted for using  

      equity method     527     - 

A23800       Reversal of write-down of  

      inventories   (  408 )   (  4,039 ) 

A24100       Net loss (gain) on foreign currency  

      exchange   (  2,813 )     4,534 

A30000  Changes in operating assets and  

 liabilities     

A31115       Financial assets mandatorily  

      classified as at fair value through  

      profit or loss     1,581,996   (  993,789 ) 

A31130       Notes receivable     -     472 

A31150       Accounts receivable     48,844     115,232 

A31160       Accounts receivable-related parties   (  24,998 )   (  11,270 ) 

A31180       Other receivables   (  2,388 )   (  32 ) 

A31190       Other receivables-related parties     2,012   (  1,740 ) 

A31200       Inventories      54,768     406,364 

A31230       Prepayments      13,725   (  10,410 ) 

A32110       Financial liabilities held for trading     -   (  2,074 ) 

A32150       Accounts payable     104,085   (  122,962 ) 

A32160       Accounts payable-related parties     24   (  7,570 ) 

A32180       Other payables     12,940     47,509 

A32190       Other payables-related parties   (  116,769 )     38,806 

A32230       Other current liabilities     14,195   (  5,823 ) 

A32240       Net defined benefit liabilities   (  11,420 )   (  37,156 ) 

A33000  Cash inflow generated from 

 operations     3,023,917     546,302 

A33100  Interest received     4,298     9,028 

A33300  Interest paid   (  43,096 )   (  55,801 ) 

A33500  Income tax paid   (  149,099 )   (  19,238 ) 

 (Cont inued)  



- 11 - 

(Cont inued)  

 

Code    2020  2019 

AAAA        Net cash inflow from operating  

       activities     2,836,020     480,291 

  Cash flow from investing activities     

B00040  Acquisition of financial assets  at 

amortised cost - non-current      5,141     - 

B00020  Proceeds from sale of financial assets 

at fair value through other  

      comprehensive income - current     -     2,389 

B00030  Capital reduction of financial assets at 

fair value through other  

      comprehensive income     34,135     18,066 

B01800  Acquisition of associates   (  783,964 )   (  1,280,719 ) 

B02400  Capital reduction and liquidation 

return of the invested company at 

equity     23,896     - 

B02700  Purchase of property, plant and 

equipment   (  284,827 )   (  67,422 ) 

B09900  Decrease (increase) in other non 

-current assets     13,313   (  31,618 ) 

B07600  Dividends received     130,713     147,428 

BBBB  Net cash outflow from investment  

activities   (  861,593 )   (  1,211,876 ) 

  Cash flow from financing activities     

C00100  Decrease in short-term borrowings   (  400,000 )   (  250,000 ) 

C00600  Increase (decrease) in short term bills 

payable    (  650,000 )     50,000 

C01600  Proceeds from long-term borrowings     5,400,000     12,500,000 

C01700  Repayments of long-term borrowings   (  6,300,000 )   (  11,650,000 ) 

C03100  Decrease in guarantee deposits  

received     3,200     - 

C04020  Repayment of the principal portion of 

lease liabilities   (  5,917 )   (  5,864 ) 

C04300  Increase (decrease) in other non- 

current liabilities   (  2,283 )     1,198 

C04500  Dividends paid   (  332,685 )   (  166,340 ) 

CCCC  Net cash inflow (outflow) of  

financing activities   (  2,287,685 )     478,994 

EEEE  Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents    (  313,258 )   (  252,591 ) 

E00100  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 

of the year     587,400     839,991 

E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

year    $ 274,142    $ 587,400 
         T he  a c co m pa n yi n g  n o t e s a r e  a n  i n t e gra l  pa r t  o f  t h e f i na n cia l  s t a t e m e nt s .       (Concluded)  

Notice to Readers: 

The financial statement (Chinese version) of our company is audited by the CPA Cheng-Chun Chiu and CPA 

Hsiu-Chun Huang of Deloitte Taiwan. For the convenience of reading, the statement has been translated from 

Chinese to English. If there is any difference regarding the context or interpretation in the English version, the 

Chinese version shall prevail. 
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2019 AND 2018   

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars,  Unless Stated Otherwise)  

 i. History of the Company 

  Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (hereinafter referred to  as “the Company”)  

was established in  January 1977, engaged in the manufacture and sale o f 

low dens ity po lyethylene (LDPE),  and ethylene vinyl acetate copolymer  

(EVA).  

  The Company’s shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. As 

of December 31, 2020, USI Corporat ion (USI) ,  the ult imate parent  

company, indirect ly ho lds 36.08% of the Company’s common shares.  

  The funct ional currency o f the Company is t he New Taiwan do llar,  

and the financial statements of the Company are presented in the 

Company’s funct ional currency.  

 ii.  Date and Procedure o f Adopt ion of Financia l Statements  

  The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 

March 5,  2021.  

 iii.  Applicat ion of New Standards and Interpretat ions  

 1 For the first  t ime, the Internat ional Financial Report ing Standards 

(IFRS),  Internat ional Account ing Standards (IAS), Internat iona l 

Financia l Report ing Interpretat ions Commit tee (IFRIC) and Standing 

Interpretat ion Commit tee (SIC) (hereinafter referred to as “IFRSs”)  

approved and issued by the Financia l Supervisory Commiss ion (FSC)  

were applied.  

  The applicat ion of the amended IFRSs approved and issued by the 

FSC shall not  result  in a mater ial change in the account ing po licies o f 

the Company.  

 2 IFRSs approved by FSC as applicable in 2021  
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New issued/revised/amended standards and 

interpretations  

Effective date of IASB 

publication 

Amendment to IFRS 4 “Extension of Temporary 

Exemption for Application of IFRS 9” 

 Effective from the date of 

issue 

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and 

IFRS 16 - “Reform of Interest Rate Indicators - 

Stage 2” 

 Effective during the annual 

reporting period 

commencing on January 

1, 2021 

Amendment of IFRS 16 “COVID-19 Related Rent 

Reduction” 

 Effective during the annual 

reporting period 

commencing on June 1, 

2020 

 

 3 IFRSs issued by IASB but  not yet  approved by FSC 

New issued/revised/amended standards and 

interpretations  

Effective date of IASB 

release (Note 1) 

“Annual Improvement for the 2018-2020 Cycle”  January 1, 2022 (Note 2) 

Amendment to IFRS 3 “Updating Index to 

Conceptual Framework” 

 January 1, 2022 (Note 3) 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or 

Investment of Assets between Investors and Their 

associatess or Joint Ventures” 

 Undecided 

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”  January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 

Amendment to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as 

Current or Non-current” 

 January 1, 2023 

Amendment to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting 

Policies” 

 January 1, 2023 (Not 6) 

 Amendments to  IAS 8 “Definitions of Accounting 

Estimates” 

 January 1, 2023 (Not 7) 

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and 

Equipment: Value before Intended Use” 

 January 1, 2022 (Note 4) 

Amendment to IAS 37 “Loss-making Contracts - 

Cost of Performance” 

 January 1, 2022 (Note 5) 

 

Note 1: Unless otherwise not ed, the above new issued/revised/amended 

standards or interpretat ions shall take effect  dur ing the annual 

report ing per iod commencing from each of t hose dates.  

Note 2: The amendments to  IFRS 9 applies to  the exchange o f financia l 

liabilit ies or the modific at ion o f the terms incurred dur ing the 

report ing per iod commencing on 1 January 2022;The 

amendments to  IAS 41 “Agriculture” apply to the measurement  

of fair value dur ing the report ing per iod commencing on 1 

January 2022;The amendments to  IFRS 1 “First  Adopt ion of 
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IFRSS” apply ret roact ively to  the annual report ing per iod 

commencing on 1 January 2022.  

Note 3: This amendment  applies to mergers with the acquis it ion date 

dur ing the annual report ing per iod commencing on January 1,  

2022.  

Note 4: This amendment  applies to plant ,  property,  and equipment  in 

such locat ions and condit ions as are necessary to  operate in the 

manner expected by management  after 1 January 2021.  

Note 5: This amendment  applies to  contracts in which a ll obligat ions 

have not  been performed on 1 January 2022.  

Note 6: This amendment  applies to  the deferral o f annual report ing 

per iods commencing on 1 January 2023.  

Note 7: This amendment  applies to  changes in account ing est imates and 

changes in account ing po lic ies that  occur dur ing the report ing 

per iod commencing on 1 January 2023.  

  As of the approval and release date of the financia l statements,  the 

Company cont inues to  evaluate the impact  of the revision o f other  

cr iter ia and interpretat ions on the financial status and financia l 

performance, and the relevant  impact  will be disclosed when the 

evaluat ion is completed.  

 (1). Amendment to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 

  This amendment  provides that  the Company shall determine 

the mater ial account ing policy informat ion to  be disclosed 

according to  the definit ion o f mater ial.  Account ing po lic y 

informat ion sha ll be deemed as mater ial to  the extent  that  it  can 

reasonably be expected to  influence the decisions made by major  

users of general-purpose financia l statements on the basis o f such 

financial statements.  This amendment  clar ifies:  

● Account ing po licy informat ion relat ing to  non-mater ia l 

t ransact ions,  other mat ters or circumstances shall be deemed as 

non-mater ial and the Company is not  required to  disclose such 

informat ion.  
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● The Company may judge the relevant  account ing po licy 

informat ion to be mater ial,  even if the amount  is not  mater ial,  

due to  the nature o f the t ransact ion, other mat ters or 

circumstances.  

●Not all the informat ion of account ing policy related to  majo r  

t ransact ions,  other mat ters or situat ions shall be significant .  

  In addit ion, the amendment  provides an example o f how 

account ing po licy informat ion may be mater ial if it  is  related to  

mater ial t ransact ions,  other mat ters or circumstances and if:  

 1) The Company changes its account ing polic ies dur ing the 

report ing per io d and the change results in a mater ial change 

in the financial statement s; 

 2) The Company selects its applicable account ing policies fro m 

among the opt ions permit ted by the IFRSs;  

 3) Account ing po lic ies established by the Company in 

accordance with IAS 8 “Account ing Polic ies,  Changes in  

Account ing Est imates and Errors” due to the absence o f 

spec ific standards;  

 4) The Company d isc loses the relevant  account ing po licies 

determined by the Company under mater ial judgments or 

assumpt ions; or 

 5) Account ing po licy informat ion that  invo lves complex 

account ing rules and on which users o f financia l statement s 

depend to understand such mater ial t ransact ions,  other  

mat ters or circumstances.  

 2. IAS 8 - Amendment s to  “Definit ions o f Account ing Est imates” 

  The revis ion specifies that  account ing est imate refers to  the 

currency amount  in the financial statement  affected by uncertaint y 

of measurement .  When using the applicable account ing po licy, the 

conso lidated company might  need to  evaluate the items in the  

financial statement  with the currency amount  that is not  able to be 

observed direct ly but  could only be est imated. Therefore,  

evaluat ing techno logy and input  value shall be used to establish 



- 16 - 

account ing est imate in order to  achieve the purpose. If the impa ct  

on the account ing est imate caused by the change o f evaluat ing 

techno logy or input  value is  not  from the correct ion o f pr io r  

per iod error,  the change sha ll be regarded as t he change o f 

account ing est imate.  

 iv.  Summary o f Significant  Account ing Polic ies  

 1 Statement  to compliance  

  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers  

 2 Bas is o f preparat ion 

  Except  for financial inst ruments at  fair va lue  and net  definit e  

benefit  liabilit y recognized at  present  value of definite benefit  

obligat ion minus fair va lue of planned assets,  the financial statements 

are prepared on a histor ical-cost  basis.  

  The measurement  of fair value is divided into Levels 1 to  3 

according to  the observabilit y and importance o f the relevant  input  

values:  

 (1). Level 1 input  value: It refers to  the quotat ions (unadjusted) of 

the same assets or liabilit ies available at act ive market s on the 

measurement  date 

 (2). Level 2 input  value: It refers to the observable input  value o f an 

asset  or liabilit y,  eit her direct ly ( i.e. , as pr ices) or indirect ly ( i.e. ,  

der ived from pr ices),  other than the quoted pr ice at  Level 1.  

 (3). Level 3 input  value: It refers to  the unobservable input  value o f 

an asset  or liabilit y.  

  In the preparat ion o f financia l statements,  the Company adopts the 

equity method to deal with t he investment  in subsidiar ies or associatess.  

To make the pro fit  and loss of t he current  per iod and other  

comprehensive income and interests in the financial statements the 

same as t he pro fit  and loss o f the current  year and other comprehensive 

income and interests at tributable to  the owner of the Company in the 

financial statements o f the Company, s ome account ing differences 

between the individual basis and the conso lidated basis are so lved by 

adjust ing related equity items, including “investments accounted for  
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using the equity method”, “the share o f profit  or loss of subsidiar ies 

and associates” and “the share o f other comprehensive income o f 

subsidiar ies and associates and the related equity it ems ” 

 3 The standard for dist inguishing current  and non-current  assets and 

liabilit ies  

  The current  assets include:  

 (1). The assets held mainly for the purpose o f t rading;  

 (2). Assets expected to  be realized within 12 months after the 

balance sheet  date; and 

 (3). Cash and cash equiva lent s (excluding those rest r icted for the 

exchange or sett lement  of liabilit ies more than 12 months after the 

balance sheet  date). 

  Current  liabilit ies include:  

 1. Liabilit ies held mainly for the purpose o f t rading;  

 2. Liabilit ies that  are due to  be paid o ff within 12 months after the 

balance sheet  date (even if a long -term refinancing or 

rescheduling agreement  has been complet ed between the balance 

sheet  date and the date of the publicat ion of the financia l 

statement),  and  

 3. Liabilit ies that  cannot  be uncondit ionally deferred to at least  12 

months after the balance sheet  date.  The classificat ion shall not  be 

affected, however,  if  the terms o f liabilit ies may, at  the opt ion o f 

the counterparty,  result  in the set t lement  of an equit y inst rument  

issued.  

Those that  are not  classified as the foregoing current  assets or 

liabilit ies are non-current  assets or liabilit ies.  

 4 Foreign currency 

When the Company prepares financial statements,  transact ions in  

currencies ( foreign currencies)  other than the Company’s funct iona l 

currency shall be converted into funct ional currency according to  the 

exchange rate on the t rading day for recording.  

Monetary it ems in foreign currency are converted at  the closing 

rate on each balance sheet  date.  Exchange differences ar ising fro m 
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delivery o f monetary items or conversion o f monetary items are 

recognized in profit  or loss in the current  per iod.  

Non-monetary items in foreign currency at  fair value are 

converted at the exchange rate on the day when the fair va lue is  

determined, and the exchange difference ar ising therefrom is inc luded 

in the current  profit  and loss,  except  that  if t he change in  fair value is  

inc luded in other comprehensive pro fit  and loss,  the exchange 

difference ar is ing therefrom is inc luded in other comprehens ive pro fit  

and loss.  

Non-monetary it ems in foreign currency at  histor ical cost  are 

converted at  the exchange rate of the t rading day and are not  

re-converted.  

For the preparat ion o f Financia l Statement s,  the assets and 

liabilit ies o f foreign operat ing inst itut ions ( includ ing subsidiar ies,  

associates or branches in countr ies where they operate or in currencies 

different  fro m the Company’s) are converted into NT dollars at  the 

exchange rate on each balance sheet  date.  Income and expense loss 

items are converted at  the average exchange rate of the current  per iod,  

and the conversion d ifference generated is listed in other  

comprehensive profit  and loss.  

I f the r ights and interests retained after the Company d isposes o f 

all interests in a foreign operat ing ent it y,  or disposes of some interests 

in a subsid iary o f a  foreign operat ing ent it y with lo ss o f control,  or  

disposes of a jo int  agreement  of a foreign operat ing ent it y or an 

associatess are financial assets and dealt  with the account ing po licy o f 

financial inst rument ,  all accumulated exchange differences related to  

the foreign operat ing ent it y will be reclassified to  profit  and loss.  

I f part ial disposal o f subsid iar ies of foreign operat ing ent it y does 

not  result  in loss o f control,  the accumulated exchange difference wil l 

be incorporated into equity t ransact ions on a pro rata bas is and will not  

be recognized as pro fit  or loss.  In the case o f any other part  of the 

disposal o f the foreign operat ing ent it y,  the accumulated exchange 

difference will be reclass ified to profit  and loss proport ionately.  

 5 Inventor ies  
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Inventor ies includes raw mater ials,  supplies,  semi-finished goods 

and finished goods.  Inventory write-downs are made by it em, except  

where it  may be appropr iate to  group similar or related items. The net  

realizable value is the est imated  selling pr ice of inventories less al l 

est imated costs of complet ion and costs necessary t o make the sale.  

Inventory cost  is calculated by the we ighted average method.  

 6 Investments accounted for using the equity method  

The Company adopts the equity method for investments in  

subsidiar ies and associates. .  

 (1). Investment  in subsidiar ies  

  Subsidiary means an ent it y under the control of the Company.  

  Under the equ ity method, the origina l investment  is  

recognized according to  the cost ,  and the subsequent  book amount  

will be increased or decreased according to  the Company’s share 

of the pro fits and losses o f subsid iar ies and other comprehensive 

income and the dist r ibut ion of profit s.  In addit ion, changes in the 

Company’s other interests in the subsidiar ies are presented 

according to  the shareho lding rat io .  

  When the change o f ownership  and equity o f the company in 

the subsidiary does not  result  in the loss of control,  it  shall be 

t reated as an equity t ransact ion.  The difference between the 

carrying amount  of an investment  and the fair value o f the 

considerat ion paid or received is direct ly recognized as equity.  

  When the Company’s share o f the lo ss to  the subsidiar ies is  

equal to  or exceeds its interest  in the subsidiar ies ( including the 

book amount  of the subsid iar ies under the equity method and other  

long-term interests which are substant ially part  of the Company ’s 

net  investment  in the subsidiar ies),  the Company shall cont inue to  

recognize the lo ss on a shareho lding basis .  

 The amount  of the acquis it ion cost  in excess of the Company ’s  

share o f the net  fair value o f the ident ifiable assets and liabilit ie s 

of the subsid iar ies const itut ing the business on the acquis it io n 

date is classified as goodwill,  which is included in t he carrying 

amount  of the investment  and is not  amort ized;  The Company’s 
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share o f the net  fair value of the subsidiary’s ident ifiable asset s 

and liabilit ies const itut ing the business on the acquisit ion dat e 

exceeding the acquis it ion cost  is recognized as income for the 

current  per iod.  

  The Company evaluates the impairment  by consider ing the 

cash generat ing units as a who le and compar ing their recoverable 

amount  to the carrying amount  in the financial statements.  If the 

recoverable amount  of the asset  increases later,  the reversal o f th e 

impair ment  loss shall be recognized as an interest ,  provided that  

the carrying amount  of the asset  after the reversa l o f the 

impair ment  loss shall not  exceed the carrying amount  which 

should have been deducted from the amort ized carrying amount  o f 

the asset  without  the recognit ion o f the impairment  loss.  

Impairment  loss att ributable to goodwill shall not be reversed in 

subsequent  per iods.  

In the event  of loss o f control over the subsidiary,  the 

Company measures the remaining investment  in the former  

subsidiary according to the fair value on the day o f lo ss o f contro l,  

and the difference between the fair value of the remaining 

investment  and any disposal pr ice on the day o f loss o f control and 

the carrying amount  of the investment  on the day o f lo ss o f cont ro l 

is inc luded in the profit  and loss of the current  per iod.  In addit ion,  

all amounts recognized in other comprehensive income relat ing to  

the subsidiar y will be accounted for on the same basis as the 

Company’s direct  disposal o f the relevant  assets or li abilit ies.  

Unrealized pro fit s and losses from downstream transact ions 

between the Company and its subsidiar ies are wr it ten off in 

individual financia l statements.  The profit s and losses ar ising 

from the counter-current  and side-current  t ransact ions between  the 

Company and its subsidiar ies shall be recognized only in the 

parent  company’s financia l statements only to  the extent  o f 

int erests in the subsid iar ies that  are not  related to  the Company.  

 (2). Investment  in associates  
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An associate refers to an enterpr ise which has a s ignificant  

influence on the Company but  is not  a subsidiary or jo int  venture 

equity.  

The Company uses the equity method to account  for its  

investments in associates.Under the equity method, the origina l 

value of the associate subject  to investment  is recognized at  the 

cost ,  and the book amount  after the acquisit ion will increase or  

decrease with the Company’s share o f the profit s and losses,  other  

comprehensive income as well as the profit  dist r ibut ion o f  

associate.  In addit ion, changes in  the equity o f associate are 

recognized according to  the shareho lding rat io .  

The amount  of the acquisit ion cost  in excess o f the 

Company’s share o f the net  fair value of the ident ifiable assets and 

liabilit ies o f the associate on the acquis it ion date is class ified as 

goodwill,  which is included in t he carrying amount  of the 

investment  and is not amort ized;  The Company’s share of the 

net  fair value of the associate’ ident ifiable  assets and liabilit ies  on 

the acquisit ion date exceeding the acquis it ion cost  i s recognized 

as income for the current  per iod.  

When an associate issues new shares,  if the Company fails  to  

subscr ibe in proport ion to its shareho lding rat io ,  result ing in a 

change in the shareho lding rat io  and a consequent  increase or  

decrease in the net  equity invested, the increase or decrease shal l 

be adjusted to  the capital reserves - the change in the net  equity o f 

the associate and the investment  at equity.  However,  if the 

ownership and equity in t he associate is reduced due to the failure 

to  subscr ibe or acqu ire the shares in proport ion, the amount  

recognized in other comprehensive income related to the associate  

is reclassified according to the reduct ion proport ion, and the 

account ing t reatment  is based on the same basis that  the associate  

must  fo llow if it  direct ly disposes related assets or liabilit ie s; I f 

the capital reserves to  be debited for the adjustment  ment ioned in 

the preceding paragraph are insuffic ient  and the balance o f t he 
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capital reserves result ing from the investment  at  equity is  

insufficient ,  the balance shall be debited to  the retained surplus.  

When the share o f the Company’s lo ss in the associate equals 

or exceeds its interest  in the associate ( including the carrying 

amount  of the investment  in the associate at equity and other  

long-term interests that  are substant ially part  of the Compan y’s 

net  investment  in the associate),  further loss recognit ion shall be 

discont inued.  The Company recognizes addit ional lo sses and 

liabilit ies only to  the extent  that  statutory obligat ions,  

construct ive obligat ions or payments have been made on behalf o f 

associate.  

The Company evaluates the impairment  by t reat ing the total 

carrying amount  of the investment  ( including goodwill) as the 

single comparat ive recoverable amount  and carrying amount  of the 

investment ,  and conducts the impairment  test . The recognized 

impair ment  loss shall not  be apport ion to any assets that form part  

of the carrying amount  o f the investment .  Any reversal o f t he 

impair ment  loss shall be recognized to  the extent  of any 

subsequent  increase in the recoverable amount  of the investment .  

The Company ceases to use the equity method on the date 

when it  ceases to  invest  in the associate,  and its retained interest  

in the original associate.  is measured at  it s fa ir value,  and the 

difference between the fair value and the disposal pr ice and the 

carrying amount  of the investment  on the date when the equit y 

method is stopped is included in t he pro fit  and loss o f the current  

per iod.  In addit ion, all amounts recognized in other  

comprehensive income related to  the associate,  shall be accounted 

for on the same basis as if the associate.  were to  direct ly dispose 

of the related assets or liabilit ies.  

The profit s and losses ar ising from the counter -current  and 

side-current  t ransact ions between the Compa ny and its associatess 

shall be recognized in the  Company’s f inancial statements only to  

the extent  that  the Company has no interest  in it s associatess.  
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 7 Property,  plant  and equipment  

Property,  plant  and equipment  are recognized at  cost and 

subsequent ly measured at  cost minus accumulated deprec iat ion and 

impair ment  losses.  

All property,  plant  and equipment  under construct ion shall be 

recognized at  the cost  minus the accumulated impa irment  lo ss.  Cost s 

inc lude fees for professional services and borrowing costs eligible fo r  

capitalizat ion.  Upon complet ion and in the intended state of use,  such 

assets shall be classified into the appropriate classes of property,  plant  

and equipment  and shall be recognized as depreciat ion.  

Except  for self-owned land which is  not  depreciated, other  

immovable property,  plant  and equipment  are depreciated separately on 

a st raight - line basis over their service life  for each signifi cant  part .The 

Company reviews the est imated service life,  residual value and 

depreciat ion method at  least  at  the end of each year and delays the 

applicat ion o f the effects o f changes in account ing est imates.  

When property,  plant  and equipment  are excluded,  the difference 

between the net  disposal pr ice and the carrying amount  of such assets is  

recognized as profit  and loss.  

 8 Investment  propert ies  

  Investment  propert ies are propert ies  held for the purpose o f 

earning rent  or capital appreciat ion or both ( including tenure assets 

that  meet  the definit ion of property for investment).  Property for  

investment  also inc ludes land current ly held for undetermined future 

use.  

  The self-owned property for investment  is measured at  init ial cost  

( including t ransact ion cost) and subsequent ly at  cost minus 

accumulated depreciat ion and accumulated impa irment  loss.  

  Property for investment  acquired by lease shall be measured at  

init ia l cost ,  and subsequent ly at  cost after deduct ing accumulated 

depreciat ion and accumulated impairment  losses,  and the remeasured 

amount  of lease liabilit ies shall be adjusted.  

  All property for investment  is depreciated on a st raight - line basis.  
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  When the property for investment  is excluded, the difference 

between the net  disposal pr ice and the carrying amount  of the asset  is  

recognized as profit  and loss.  

 9  Intangible assets  

 (1). Acquired separately  

Intangib le assets o f limited service life acquired separately 

are measured at  cost  in the init ial form, and the subsequent  form is  

measured at  cost  minus accumulated amort izat ion and 

accumulated impairment  lo sses.  I f intangible assets are amort ized 

on a st raight - line basis over their service life,  the Company shal l 

examine the est imated service life,  residual value and 

amort izat ion method at  least  at  the end o f each year and defer the 

impact  of changes in account ing est imates.  

Intangible assets without  definite ser vice life are presented 

at  cost  minus accumulated impairment  loss.  

 (2). Excluded  

  When intangible assets are excluded,  the difference between 

the net  disposal pr ice and the carrying amount  of the asset  is  

recognized as the profit  and loss o f the current  per iod.  

 10 Impairment  of property,  plant  and equipment ,  Right-of-use assets,  

int angible assets and contractual cost  

  At each balance sheet  date,  the Company assesses whether there is  

any indicat ion that  immovable property,  plant  and equipment ,  

Right -to-use assets and intangible assets may have been impaired.  I f 

any ind icat ion of impairment  exist s,  the recoverable amount  of the 

asset  is est imated. Where it  is not  possible to est imate the recoverable 

amount  of an individual asset ,  the Company est imates the recoverable 

amount  of the cash generat ing unit  to  which the asset  belongs.  Shared 

assets are apport ioned among individual cash generat ing unit s on a 

reasonably consistent  basis.  

  For intangible assets with uncertain service life and not  yet  

available for use,  the impairment  test  shall be conducted at  least  

annually and when there is evidence of impairment .  
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  The recoverable amount  is the higher of the fair value minus the 

cost  of sale and its use value.  If the recoverable amount  of an 

individual asset  or cash generat ing unit  is lower than its carrying 

amount ,  the carrying amount  of the asset  or cash generat ing unit  shal l 

be reduced to its recoverable amount ,  and the impairment  los s shall be 

recognized as profit  and loss.  

  For the inventory recognized in the customer contract ,  first ly,  the 

impair ment  is recognized according to  the provisions o f inventory 

impair ment ; secondly,  the carrying amount  of the assets related to  the 

contractual cost  exceeds the considerat ion expect ed to  be received for  

providing the relevant  goods or services,  and the remaining amount  

after deduct ing the direct ly related costs is recognized as impairment  

lo ss and finally,  the carrying amount  of the assets related to the 

contractual cost  shall be inc luded to the cash generat ing unit  for the 

impair ment  assessment  of the cash generat ing unit .  

  In the event  of a subsequent  reversal o f the impairment  lo ss,  the 

carrying amount  of the asset ,  cash generat ing unit  or contractual cost  

related asset  is adjusted to  the revised recoverable amount ,  provided 

that  the increased carrying amount  shall not  exceed the carrying 

amount  (deduct ing amort izat ion or depreciat ion) determined if t he 

impair ment  loss of the related asset ,  cash generat ing unit  or contractual 

cost  had not  been recognized in previous years.  The reversal o f the 

impair ment  loss is recognized as profit  and loss.  

11 Financia l inst rument s 

  The financia l assets and financial liabilit ies are recognized on the 

individual ba lance sheet  when the Company becomes a party to  the 

terms o f the inst rument .  

  When the financial asset s or financial liabilit ies are init ially 

recognized, if the financial  asset  or financial liabilit y is not measured 

at  fair value through profit  or loss,  they are measured at  fair value plus 

t ransact ion costs direct ly at t ributable to the acquis it ion or issuance o f 

financial assets or financial liabilit ies.  Transact ion costs direct ly 

att ributable to  the acquis it ion or issue o f financia l assets or financ ia l 
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liabilit ies measured at  fair value through profit  or loss are immediately 

recognized as profit  or loss.  

 (1). Financia l assets  

  Convent ional t ransact ions of financial assets are recognized 

and excluded on the t rading day.  

 1) Measurement  t ype  

  The types o f financia l assets held by the Company are 

financial assets at  fair value through pro fit  and loss,  financia l 

assets at  amort ized cost ,  and investments in equity inst rument  

at  fair value through other comprehensive income.  

A.  Financia l assets at  fair value through profit  and loss  

  Financial assets at  fair value through pro fit  and loss 

inc lude financial assets include fair value thro ugh other 

comprehensive income. Fair value through other 

comprehensive income includes investments in equity 

inst rument  that  the Company has not  spec ified to  be 

measured at  fair value through other  comprehensive 

income, and der ivat ives and fund benefit  cer t ificates that  

do not qualify as measured at  amort ized cost or measured 

at  fair value through other comprehensive income.  

  Financial assets at  fair value through pro fit  and loss 

are measured at  fair value.  Dividends and interest  accrued 

are classified as other income and int erest  income 

respect ively,  and profits or losses accrued from further  

measurement  are classified as ot her benefit s and losses.  

For the determinat ion of fair value,  please refer to  Note 27. 

B.  Financia l assets at  amort ized cost  

  Financial assets invested by the Company are 

classified as financia l assets at  amort ized cost  if they meet  

the fo llowing two condit ions:  

a.  Held under a business model for the purpose o f 

co llect ing contractual cash flows;  and 
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b.  The cash flows der iving from the contract  terms on the 

spec ific date are solely for the payment  of principal and 

int erest  on the outstanding pr inc ipal amou nt .  

  After init ial recognit ion, financial assets ( including 

cash and cash equiva lents,  accounts receivable at  

amort ized cost  and other receivables) at  amort ized cost  are 

measured as the amort ized cost  of the total book amount  

determined by the effect ive inter est  method deduct ing any 

impair ment  loss,  and any pro fits or losses on foreign 

exchange are recognized as pro fit  or loss.  

Interest  income is calculated by mult iplying the 

effect ive int erest  rate by the total book amount  of the 

financial asset ,  except  in the fo llowing two cases:  

a.  For the credit  impairment  of financia l assets purchased 

or init iated, interest  income is calculated by mult iplying 

the effect ive interest  rate after credit  adjustment  by the 

cost  after amort izat ion of financial assets.  

b.  For financia l assets that  are not credit  impairment  

acquired or init iated, but  subsequent ly become credit  

impair ment ,  the interest  income shall be calcu lated by 

mult ip lying the effect ive interest  rate by the amort ized 

cost  of the financia l asset  from the next  repo rt ing per iod 

after the impairment .  

Credit  impairment  of financial assets refer to  the fact  

that  the issuer or the debtor has exper ienced major  

financial difficu lt ies,  breach o f contract , the debtor is  

likely to claim bankruptcy or other financial rest ructu r ing,  

or the act ive market  of financial assets disappears due to  

financial difficult ies.  

Cash equivalents consist  of high- liquid t ime deposit s 

that  can be readily converted into fixed cash with lit t le r isk 

of change in value and putable bond to meet  short -term 

cash commitments.  
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C.Investments in equity inst ruments at  fair value through 

other comprehensive income.  

At  the t ime o f the init ia l recognit ion, the Company 

may, as an irrevocable opt ion, designate investments in 

equity inst ruments which are not held for t rade and which 

are not  recognized as cont ingent  considerat ion by the 

merger acquirer to  be measured at  fair value through other  

comprehensive income.  

Investments in equity inst ruments measured at fair  

value through other comprehensive income are measured at  

fair value,  and subsequent  changes in  fair value are 

reported in other comprehensive income and accumulated 

in other interests.  At  the t ime o f investment  disposal,  

accumulated profit s and losses are t ransferred direct ly to  

retained earnings and are not  reclassified as pro fit  and 

loss.  

The d ividends o f t he Company's r ight  to  receive fro m 

shares invested in equity inst ruments at  fair value through 

other comprehensive income is recognized in t he pro fit  and 

loss at  the t ime o f establishment ,  unless the dividend 

clear ly represents the recovery o f part  of t he investment  

cost . 

 2) Impairment  o f financia l assets  

On each balance sheet  date,  the Company evaluates the 

expected credit  lo ss impairment  of financial assets ( including 

accounts receivable) as measured at  amortized cost .  

Accounts receivable shall be recognized as an allowance 

for expected credit  losses dur ing the  per iod of existence. For  

other financial assets,  the Company first  evaluates whether  

the credit  r isk has significant ly increased since the init ia l 

recognit ion. I f it  has not ,  the Company will recognize the 

allowance for lo ss based on the expected credit  lo ss o f 12 

months; if it  has significant ly increased,  the Company wil l 
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recognize the allowance for loss based on the expected credit  

lo ss dur ing the per iod o f existence.  

Expected credit  loss is a weighted average credit  loss 

weighted by the r isk of default .  The 12-month expected credit  

lo ss refers to  the expected credit  loss due to  the probable 

default  of the financial inst rument  within 12 months a fter the 

report ing date,  while the expected credit  loss over the li fe  

per iod represents the expected credit  loss due to  all the 

probable defaults o f the financia l inst rument  dur ing the 

expected life per iod.  

For the purposes o f internal credit  r isk manageme nt ,  the 

Company, without  regard to  the collateral it  ho lds,  

determines that  the fo llowing circumstances represent  a  

default  o f financia l assets:  

A.  There is int ernal or external informat ion indicat ing that  it  

is impossible for the debtor to repay the debt .  

B.  In the event  of a delay, the default  base line is more 

appropr iate unless reasonably ver ifiable informat ion is 

available to just ify the delay.  

The impairment  loss on all financial assets is  the 

reduct ion o f the carrying amount  of the allowance account .  

 3) Exclusion o f financial assets  

The Company will exclude a financia l asset  only when 

contractual r ights to  the cash flow from the financial asset  

have lapsed or the financ ial asset  has been t ransferred and 

virtually all the r isks and rewards o f ownership o f the asset  

have been t ransferred to another enterpr ise.  

When a financ ial asset  at  amort ized cost  is  exc luded as a 

who le,  the difference between its carrying amount  and the 

sum of any accumulated pro fit  or loss that  has been 

recognized as other comprehensive income, plus any 

considerat ion rece ived, is  recognized as profit  and loss. When 

the investment  in equity inst rument  at  fair value through 

other comprehensive income is excluded, the accumulated 
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profit  and loss will be direct ly t ransferred to  retained 

earnings and not  re-classified as profit  and loss.  

 (2). Financia l liabilit ies  

 1) Subsequent  measurement  

All financial liabilit ies are measured on an effect ive 

int erest  bas is at  amort ized cost ,  except  in the fo llowing 

cases:  

Financia l liabilit ies at  fair value through profit  and loss  

Financia l liabilit ies at  fair value through profit  and loss 

are held for t rading.  

The financia l liabilit ies held for t rading are measured at  

fair value and the related profits and losses are recognized as 

other profit  and loss.  

For the determinat ion of fair value,  please refer to Note 

27. 

 2) Exclusion o f financial liabilit ies  

In the exclusion of financial liabilit ies,  the difference 

between the carrying amount  and the considerat ion pa id 

( including any non-cash assets t ransferred or liabilit ie s 

assumed) is recognized as profit  and loss.  

 (3). Der ivat ives  financial inst ruments  

Der ivat ives financia l inst ruments entered into by the 

Company are forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the 

Company’s int erest  rate and foreign exchang e r isk.  

In signing a der ivat ive contract ,  the der ivat ive is init ially 

recognized at  it s fair value and subsequent ly measured at  it s fair  

value on the ba lance sheet  date.  The profit  or loss ar ising from the 

subsequent  measurement  is direct ly included in the  profit  and loss.  

However,  the t ime po int  when a der ivat ive designated as an 

effect ive hedging inst rument  is recognized in t he pro fit  and loss 

will depend on the nature of the hedging relat ionship.  When the 

fair value o f a der ivat ive is  posit ive,  it  is cla ssified as a financia l 

asset .  When the fair value is negat ive,  it  is  classified as a financia l 

liabilit y.  
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I f der ivat ives are embedded in the asset  master contract 

within the scope of IFRS9 “Financial Inst ruments”,  the 

classificat ion o f financial assets is determined by the overal l 

contract .  If a der ivat ive is embedded in a non-IFRS 9 asset  master  

contract  (e.g.  embedded in a financia l liabilit y master contract), 

and if t he embedded der ivat ive meets the definit ion o f der ivat ive,  

it s r isks and character ist ics  are not  closely related to the risks and 

character ist ics o f the master contract , and the mixed contract  is  

not  measured at  fair value,  the der ivat ive is  deemed as a separate 

der ivat ive.  

12 Revenue recognit ion 

After t he performance obligat ions are ident ifi ed in t he customer  

contract ,  the Company allocates the t ransact ion pr ice among the 

performance obligat ions and recognizes the income when the 

performance obligat ions are met .  

Sale of goods 

The income from commodity sales comes from the manufactur ing 

and sales of LDPE and EVA. Since the customer has the r ight  to set  the 

pr ice and use the goods when the aforesaid goods are shipped or arr ived 

at  the place designated by the customer,  and has the main responsibilit y 

for resale,  and bears the r isk o f obsolescence  of the goods, the 

Company recognizes revenue and accounts receivable at  that  t ime.  

13 Lease  

  On the date of contract  establishment ,  the Company assesses 

whether the Contract  is a lease (or includes it ) .  

 1) The Company as lessor  

A financing lease is cla ssified when the terms o f the lease 

t ransfer to the lessee virtually all o f the r isks and rewards 

attached to the ownership o f the asset .  All other leases are 

classified as business lease.  

When the Company subleases the Right -to-use assets,  it  is  

the Right -to-use assets (not  the under lying  assets) that  are used to  

determine the classificat ion o f the subleases.  The sublease is  
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classified as a business lease if the pr inc ipal lease is a short -term 

lease for which the Company applies the waiver o f recognit ion.  

Under a business lease,  lease payment s excluding lease 

incent ives are recognized as income on a st raight - line bas is 

dur ing the relevant  lease term.  The or iginal direct  costs arising 

from the acquisit ion o f the business lease are included to the 

book amount  of the under lying asset  and are recognized as 

expenses on a st raight - line basis dur ing the lease term.  

 2) The Company as lessee  

Except  for the lease o f the low-value under lying asset  for  

which the recognit ion exempt ion is applicable and the lease 

payment  of the short -term lease is recognized as expense dur ing 

the lease term on a st raight - line basis,  the r ight -of-use assets and 

lease liabilit ies o f all other leases are recognized on the 

commencement  date.  

The r ight -of-use assets are init ially measured at  cost  

( including the or igina l measurement  amount  of t he lease liabilit y,  

the lease payment  paid before the beginning o f the lease less the 

lease incent ive received, the or iginal direct  cost and the 

est imated cost  of the under lying asset), and subsequent ly 

measured at  cost  minus accumulated depreciat ion and 

accumulated impairment  loss,  and the remeasured amount  of lease 

liabilit ies is adjusted.  The r ight -to-use assets are expressed 

separately in the individual balance sheet  unless they meet  the 

definit ion o f property for investment .  Please refer to  8 the 

account ing po licy o f property for investment  for the 

ident ificat ion and measurement  of the right -of-use assets that  

conform to the definit ion o f property for investment .  

The r ight  asset  is depreciated on a st ra ight- line basis fro m 

the commencement  date of the lease to the expirat ion o f it s  

service life  or the expirat ion o f the lease term, whichever is  

ear lier.  

Lease liabilit ies are init ia lly measured in terms o f the 

present  value of lease payment s.  I f the implied interest  rate of the 
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lease is easy to determine, the lease payment  is discounted by the 

int erest  rate.  If the interest  rate is not easy to  determine, the 

increased borrowing rate of the lessee is used.  

Subsequent ly,  the lease liabilit y is measured on an amort ized 

cost  basis adopt ing the effect ive int erest  method and the int erest  

expense is apport ioned over the lease term. Lease liabilit ies are 

presented separately on individual balance sheets.  

14 Employee benefits  

 (1). Short -term employee benefit s  

Liabilit ies related to  short-term employee benefits are 

measured as non-discounted amounts expected to be paid in 

exchange for employee services.  

 (2). Ret irement  benefit s  

The determinat ion o f pension contr ibut ions to  a ret irement  

scheme is t he recognit ion o f the amount  of pension contr ibut ions 

as expenses dur ing the per iod of service provided by the 

employee.  

The defined benefit  costs ( inc luding service costs,  net  

int erests and re-measurement  amounts) of defined benefit  

ret irement  plan is calculated according to  projected unit  credit  

method. Service costs and net  interest  on net  defined benefit  

liabilit ies (assets) are recognized as employee benefit  expenses at  

the t ime o f occurrence.  The remeasured amount  (including 

actuar ial profit  and loss and return on planne d assets after  

deduct ing interest ) shall be recognized as other comprehensive 

profit  and loss and included in retained earnings at  the t ime o f 

occurrence, and shall not  be reclassified to  profit  and loss in 

subsequent  per iods.  

Net  defined benefit  liabilit ies (assets) are contr ibut ion 

short falls ( surplus) of defined benefit  ret irement  plan. Net  defined 

benefit  assets shall not  exceed the present  value of refunded or 

reduced future contr ibut ions from the plan.  
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15   Taxat ion 

  Income tax expense refers to  the sum of current  income tax and 

deferred tax.  

 (1). Current  tax 

  The Company sha ll calculate the income tax payable in 

accordance with the laws and regulat ions of the Republic o f 

China.  

  The add it ional income tax on undis t r ibuted earnings 

calculated in accordance with the income tax law o f the Republic 

of China shall be recognized in the year of the reso lut ion o f the 

shareho lder ’ meet ing.  

  The adjustment  of tax payable in previous years shall be 

inc luded in the current  tax.  

 (2). Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is calculated on the basis  of the temporar y 

difference between the carrying amount  of assets and liabilit ies 

and the tax basis on which taxable income is calculated.  

Deferred tax liabilit ies are generally recognized for a ll 

taxable temporary differences,  while deferred tax assets ar e 

recognized when taxable assets are likely to  be available for  

deduct ible temporary differences.  

Taxable temporary differences related to investment  in 

subsidiar ies and associatess are recognized as deferred  tax 

liabilit ies,  except  where the company can control the t iming o f 

reversa l o f the temporary differences and it  is highly likely that  

such temporary differences will not  be reversed in t he foreseeable 

future.  Temporary differences in relat ion to  such investments are 

deduct ible only to the extent  that  there is a high likelihood that  

there will be suffic ient  taxable income to realize the temporar y 

differences and that  the return is expected in the foreseeable 

future.  

The carrying amount  of de ferred tax assets is reviewed on 

each balance sheet  date and is reduced for those who are no longer  

likely to have sufficient  taxable income to recover all or part  of 
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their assets.  Assets not  previously recognized as deferred  tax 

assets are reviewed on each balance sheet  date,  and the carrying 

amount  will be increased if it  is likely to  generate taxable income 

in the future for the recovery o f all or part  of the assets.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilit ies are measured by the tax 

rate of the current  period when the expected liabilit ies are paid o ff 

or the assets are realized. The tax rate is based on the tax rate and 

tax law that  have been enacted or substant ively enacted on the 

balance sheet  date.  The measurement  of deferred tax liabilit ie s 

and assets reflects the tax consequences of the manner in which 

the Company is expected to  recover or pay o ff t he carrying 

amounts of it s assets and liabilit ies on the balance sheet  date.  

 (3). Current  and deferred tax  

Current  and deferred taxes are recognized in pro fit  and loss,  

while the current  and deferred income taxes related to  items 

recognized in other comprehensive income or direct ly recognized 

in equity are recognized in other comprehensive income or 

direct ly recognized in equity,  respect ive ly.  

 v. Major Sources o f Uncertainty in  Significant  Account ing Judgments,  

Est imates and Assumpt ions  

Management  must  make relevant  judgments,  est imates and 

assumpt ions based on histor ical exper ience and other relevant  factors 

when the Company adopts account ing po licies for informa t ion not  readily 

available from other sources.  Actual results may differ from est imates.  

The company takes the economic impact  of COVID -19’s epidemic 

into account  of mater ial account ing est imates,  and management  wil l 

cont inue to  review the est imates and bas ic assumpt ions.  I f the revis ion o f 

the est imate affects only the current  per iod, it  will be recognized in the 

current  per iod of revision; I f t he revis ion of account ing est imates affect s 

both the current  and future per iods,  it  will be recognized in the cur rent  

per iod of revis ion and future per iods.  

Main sources o f uncertainty in est imates and assumpt ions  

 1 Est imated impairment  of financia l assets  
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The est imated impairment  of accounts receivable is based on the 

Company’s assumpt ions about  the default  rate and the expected loss 

rate.  The Company takes into account  histor ica l exper ience, current  

market  condit ions and forward- looking informat ion to make 

assumpt ions and select  the input  value o f the impairment  assessment .  

Please refer to  Note 9 for the important  assumpt ions and input  values.  

I f actual cash flows in the future are less than expected, there may be  a 

significant  impairment  loss.  

 2 Writ e-down o f inventories  

The net  realized value o f inventories is the est imated selling pr ice 

in the ordinary course o f business after deduct ing the est imated costs to  

be incurred for complet ion and the est imated costs to  be incurred for  

complet ion of sales.  Such est imates are based on current  market  

condit ions and histor ical sales exper ience of similar products.  Changes 

in market  condit ions may mater ially affect  these est imates.  

 3 Est imat ion o f compensat ion for damage caused by gas explosion event  

of associates  

In the event  of civil damages due to  gas explosion  o f associates,  

China General Terminal & Distr ibut ion Corporat ion , the management  

author ity recognizes the liabilit y provision, taking into account  the 

progress o f cr iminal proceed ings and set t le ment ,  and taking into  

account  legal advice to  est imate the amount  of the liabilit y provis ion,  

but  the actual result  may be different  from the current  est imate.  
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vi.  Explanat ion o f Important  Account ing Items  

 6. Cash and cash equ ivalents  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Cash on hand and petty cash    $ 179    $ 170 

Bank checks and current deposits     24,490     31,576 

Cash equivalents     

  Time deposits     249,473     544,654 

  Reverse repurchase 

agreements collateralized by 

bonds 

 

   - 

 

   11,000 

    $ 274,142    $ 587,400 

 

  The range o f market  interest  rates for t ime deposit s and reverse 

repurchase agreements co llateralized by bonds  on the balance sheet  date 

is as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Time deposits  0.07%~1.90%  0.56%~2.58% 

Reverse repurchase agreements 

collateralized by bonds 

 

- 

 

0.60% 

 

 7. Financia l inst ruments at  fair value through pro fit  or loss -  current  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Financial assets - current     

Derivatives at fair value through 

other comprehensive income     

  (no hedge designated)     

    －forward foreign 

exchange contract     $ -    $ 94 

  Non-derivative financial 

assets     

    －Domestic listed 

(OTC) stocks     175,885     123,179 

    －Mutual funds     831,415     2,462,023 

    Subtotal      1,007,300     2,585,202 

    $ 1,007,300    $ 2,585,296 

     

Financial liabilities-current     

Held for trading     

  Derivatives (no hedge 

designated)     

    －forward foreign 

exchange contract     $ 3,912    $ - 
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  In 2020 and 2019, the Company generated a net  profit  o f 

NT$104,863 thousand and NT$58,647 thousand from financia l assets and 

liabilit ies at  fair value through profit  and loss,  respect ively.  

  Unmatured forward foreig n exchange contracts not  subject  to hedge 

account ing on the balance sheet  date are as fo llows:  

December 31, 2020  

 

 

C u r r e n c y  

 

Time to Maturity 

 Contract Amount 

 (In Thousands) 

Forward 

exchange sold 

 RMB / NTD  January 5, 2021 to 

April 1, 2021 

 RMB77,660/NTD333,460 

 

December 31, 2019  

 

 

C u r r e n c y 

 

Time to Maturity 

 Contract Amount 

 (In Thousands) 

Forward 

exchange sold 

 USD / NTD  January 13, 2020 to 

February 5, 2020 

 USD 1,730/NTD 52,503 

Forward 

exchange sold 

 RMB / NTD  January 6, 2020 to 

March 30, 2020 

 RMB 72,000/NTD 309,065 

 

  The Company’s forward foreign exchange t ransact ions is mainly for  

avo iding the r isk o f foreign currency assets and liabilit ies ar ising fro m 

exchange rate fluctuat ions.  The forward foreign exchange contracts held 

by the Company ar e not  qualified for the effect ive hedging condit ions,  so  

hedging account ing is not  applicable.  

 8. Financia l assets at  fair value through other comprehensive income  

Investment  in equity inst rument  at  fair value through other comprehensive 

income 

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Current     

Domestic investment     

  Listed (OTC) stocks    $ 86,368    $ 73,352 

     

Non-current     

Domestic investment     

  Listed (OTC) stocks    $ 2,977,139    $ 2,050,839  

  Non-listed (OTC) stocks     275,798     237,776 

    $ 3,252,937    $ 2,288,615  

 

  The Company invests in domest ic common stocks for medium - and 

long-term st rategic purposes and expects to earn profit s from these 
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investments over the long term.  The management  of the Company ins ist s 

that  the inclusion o f short -term fluctuat ions in the fair value o f such 

investments in the pro fit  and loss is  incons istent  with the forego ing 

long-term investment  plan, and therefo re chooses to designate such 

investments as measured at  fair value through other comprehensive 

income.  

The invested companies KHL IB Venture Capital Co.,  Ltd.  and 

Riselink Venture Capital Corp. hand led cash reduct ion and refund o f 

share proceeds in August ,  December and September 2020, respect ively,  

and the Company recovered a total o f NT $ 34,135 thousand according to  

the proport ion o f shares held.  

  In March and May 2019, the Company adjusted the investment  

posit ion to spread r isks and so ld part of common shares of CTCI 

Corporat ion and the unrealized earnings of NT$ 1573 thousand ar is ing 

from relevant  other equity- financial assets at fa ir value through other  

comprehensive income are t ransferred to retained earnings.  

  The invested companies,  Harbinger Venture Capital Corp. ,  KHL IB 

Venture Capital Co.,  Ltd.  and Riselink Venture Capital Corp . handled 

cash reduct ion and refund o f share proceeds in January, May and 

September,  respect ively,  and the Company recovered a total o f NT$18,066 

thousand according to  the proport ion of shares he ld.  

 9. Financia l assets at  amort ized cost  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Non-current     

Restricted bank deposits    $ 42,648    $ - 

 

  The rest r icted bank deposit s are the earnings  repatr iat ion o f USI 

Internat ional Corporat ion and the Minist ry of Economic Affairs has 

approved the app licat ion o f the Company’s applicat ion for the applicat ion 

of Regulat ions Governing Investment  Industry with Repatr iated Offshore 

Funds.  
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 10. Accounts receivable  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Accounts receivable     

Total carrying amount at 

amortized cost     

      $ 547,372    $ 593,523  

  Minus: allowance for loss   (  2,000 )   (  2,000 ) 

    $ 545,372    $ 591,523  

Accounts receivable-related 

parties (Note 28)    $ 209,875    $ 184,772  

Accounts receivable  

Accounts receivable at  amort ized cost  

  The average credit  per iod of the Company for merchandise sales is  

about  15 days to  90 days.  Due to the short  credit  per iod, no interest  wil l 

be accrued on accounts receivable.  

  To mit igate credit  risk,  the management  of the Company assigns a 

dedicated team responsible for the decision o f credit  durat ion, credit  

approval and other monitor ing procedures to  ensure that  appropriat e 

act ions are taken for the collect ion o f overdue receivables.  In addit ion,  

the Company will review the recoverable amounts of receivables on a 

case-by-case bas is on the balance sheet  date to  ensure that  appropr iat e 

impair ment  losses have been provided for unrecoverable receivables.  

According ly,  t he management  of t he Company believes that  the credit  r isk 

of the Company has been significant ly mit igated.  

  The Company recognizes the allowance for lo sses on accounts 

receivable on the basis o f expected credit  losses over the life per iod.  

Expected credit  losses over the life per iod are calculated with the reserve 

matr ix,  which examines and weighs the customer ’s past  default  record and 

current  financia l and industr ial economic posit ions.  

  The allowance loss o f accounts receivable measured at  reserve 

matr ix is as fo llows:  
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December 31, 2020  

  Not overdue  1 - 6 0  d a y s  61- 90 days  T o t a l  

Total carrying amount    $ 757,247    $ -    $ -    $ 757,247 

Allowance for loss 

(expected credit 

loss during life 

period) 

 

 (  2,000 ) 

 

   - 

 

   - 

 

 (  2,000 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 755,247    $ -    $ -    $ 755,247 

 

December 31, 2019  

  Not overdue  1 - 6 0  d a y s  61- 90 days  T o t a l  

Total carrying amount    $ 778,295     $ -     $ -     $ 778,295  

Allowance for loss 

(expected credit 

loss during life 

period) 

 

 (  2,000 ) 

 

   - 

 

   - 

 

 (  2,000 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 776,295     $ -     $ -     $ 776,295  

  The above analys is is  based on the overdue date. -  

  The changes o f allowance for lo ss of accounts receivable are as 

fo llows:  

  2020  2019 

Balance at January 1    $ 2,000    $ 2,000 

Add: reclassification this year     -     - 

Balance at December 31    $ 2,000    $ 2,000 
 

11. Inventory 

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Finished products    $ 158,254    $ 263,012 

Semi-finished products     19,347     22,665 

Raw materials     82,790     18,826 

Supplies      34,455     44,703 

    $ 294,846    $ 349,206 
 

  Inventory-related cost  of goods sold for 2020 and 2019 is 

NT$4,405,880 thousand and NT$5,560,296 thousand, respect ively.The 

cost  of goods sold for the years 2020 and 2019 includes the net  realized 

value of inventory recovery o f NT$408 thousand and NT$4,0 39 thousand,  

respect ively.  The recovery o f net  realized value o f inventory is because o f 

the r ise o f the selling pr ice o f inventory in the market .  

12.  Investment  at  equity 
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  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Investment in subsidiaries     $ 712,918    $ 719,952 

Investment in associatess     6,449,500     5,471,068 

    $ 7,162,418    $ 6,191,020 

 

 (1) Investment  in subsidiar ies  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Non-listed (OTC) companies     

  APC (BVI) Holding Co., 

Ltd. 

 

  $ 517,012 

 

  $ 491,974 

  APC Investment Co., Ltd.     132,491     95,236 

  USI International Corp.     63,415     132,742 

    $ 712,918    $ 719,952 

 

  The Company’s ownership equity and vot ing percentage in t he 

subsidiar ies as of the Balance Sheet  Date are as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

APC (BVI) Holding Co., Ltd.  100%  100% 

APC Investment Co., Ltd.  100%  100% 

USI International Corp.  70%  70% 

 

  In November 2020, the subsid iary USI Internat ional Corp. handled 

cash reduct ion and refund of share proceeds and the  Company 

recovered a total of NT$ 20,020 thousand according to  the proport ion 

of shares held.  

  The shares o f pro fit  and loss at  equity and other comprehensive 

income at  equity o f the subsidiar y in 2020 and 2019 are recognized on 

the basis o f financial statements of each subsidiar y aud ited by CPA for  

the same per iod.  

  In order to meet  t he bus iness needs,  the Company has been 

approved by the reso lut ion o f Board of Directors on August  12, 2020 to 

establish a jo int  venture sales company through APC (BVI) and 

Swanlake Traders Ltd. ,  the subsidiary of USI Corporat ion. The cap ita l 

is expected to  be RMB$ 300,000 thousand and the Company’s 

shareho lding rat io  is expected to  be 30%.  

 (2) Investment  in associates  
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  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Associatess with great 

significance     

Ever Conquest Global Ltd.    $ 5,066,945    $ 4,265,335 

Associatess with non-great 

significance     

Listed (OTC) companies     

China General Plastics 

Corporation (CGPC)     782,997     665,776 

Acme Electronics Corporation 

(ACME)     42,939     41,454 

Non-listed (OTC) companies     

China General Terminal & 

Distribution Corporation 

(CGTD)     315,711     257,584 

Swanson Plastics Corporation 

(SPC)     206,857     198,065 

Taiwan United Venture Capital 

Corp. (TUVC)     21,472     20,142 

Thintec Materials Corporation 

(TMC)     -     4,399 

USI Optronics Corporation 

(USIO)     12,579     18,313 

    $ 6,449,500    $ 5,471,068 

 

 1). Associatess with great  significance  

 

 

 

 

 

 Proportion of shares held 

a n d  v o t i n g  r i g h t s 

C o m p a n y  n a m e 

 

Nature of business 

 

M a i n  p r e m i s e s 

 December 

31, 2020 

 December 

31, 2019 

Ever Conquest 

Global Ltd. 

 Reinvestment 

business 

 BVI  40.87%  36.89% 

 

  The forego ing associatess are measured at  equity by the 

Company.  

  The fo llowing summary financial informat ion is prepared on 

the basis o f financia l statements subject  to  IFRSs o f each 

associates,  which has depicted the adjustments when the equit y 

method is adopted.  
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Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Non-current assets    $ 12,398,597    $ 11,563,685 

Equity     $ 12,398,597    $ 11,563,685 

Shareholding ratio of the 

Company 

 

   40.87% 

 

   36.89% 

Equity enjoyed by the 

Company 

 

  $ 5,066,945 

 

  $ 4,265,335 

     

Carrying amount of the 

investment 

 

  $ 5,066,945 

 

  $ 4,265,335 

  Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  did not  generate significant  

operat ing revenue for years 2020 and 2019.  

  2020  2019 

The share of the 

Company 

 

 

 

 

Loss t of the year   ( $ 44,058 )   ( $ 10,228 ) 

Other 

comprehensive 

income(loss) 

 

   53,761 

 

 (  174,072 ) 

Total comprehensive 

loss for the year 

 

 ( $ 9,703 ) 

 

 ( $ 184,300 ) 

 

 2). Summar y o f subsid iar ies and associatess not  with great  

significance  

 

  2020  2018 

The share of the 

Company 

 

 

 

 

Net profit of the 

year 

 

  $ 222,185 

 

  $ 85,628  

Other 

comprehensive 

income 

 

   46,815 

 

   539 

Total comprehensive 

income for the 

year 

 

  $ 269,000 

 

  $ 86,167  

 

  The ownership equ ity and vot ing r ight  of the Company to the 

associatess on the balance sheet  date are as fo llows:  
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C o m p a n y  n a m e  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

CGPC     8.07%     8.07% 

ACME     3.31%     3.31% 

CGTD     33.33%     33.33% 

SPC     7.95%     7.95% 

TUVC     8.33%     8.33% 

TMC     -     30.42% 

USIO     9.20%     9.20% 

 

  Please refer to  Attached Form 5 “Informat ion o f Invested 

Company, Locat ion and Other Relevant  Informat ion” and Attached 

Form 6 “Informat ion of Investment  in Mainland China” for the 

business nature,  main business premises and country o f 

incorporat ion o f the aforesa id associatess.  

  Due to the fact  that  TMC has no substant ial product ion and 

sales bus iness in recent  years,  the Board of Directors of TMC 

reso lved on Apr il 12, 2019 to handle disso lut ion and liquidat ion 

start ing from May 25, 2019 (disso lut ion date),  and has completed 

disso lut ion and liquidat ion procedures on July 22, 2020, and 

recognized the disposit ion o f investment  loss of NT$527 thousand.  

  Although the Company’s shareho lding rat io  in the invested 

companies,  i.e.  CGPC, ACME, SPC, TUVC and USIO is lower than 20%, 

these companies are still evaluated at equity due to their great significance. 

  The Company and USI originally signed the Jo int  Venture 

Agreement  for Investment  in Fujian Gule i Petrochemical Co. Ltd  

on Apr il 17, 2014.  However,  due to  the demand for increased 

capital,  the new Jo int  Venture Agreement  was signed on 

September 30, 2016. Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  is a jo int  venture 

between the Company and USI to  invest  in the jo int  venture 

through the third region. As of December  31, 2020, the Company 

and USI have invested US $170,475 thousand (approximately NT 

$5,255,588 thousand) and US $246,670 thousand (approximately 

NT $7,645,980 thousand) respec t ively in  Ever Conquest  Globa l 

Ltd.  Please refer to Note 29 for relevant  informat ion.  
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  The market  pr ice informat ion of the listed (OTC) company ’s 

equity investment  on the balance sheet  date calculated according 

to  the closing pr ice o f stock is as fo llows:  

C o m p a n y  n a m e   December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

CGPC    $ 1,136,432    $ 884,565  

ACME    $ 114,470    $ 74,194  
 

  For the profit  and loss of associatess at equity and the share 

of other comprehensive income, except  that  ACME failed to  

calculate them for year2020 according to  the financ ial statements 

audited by CPA, the rest  are recognized according to the financia l 

reports audited by accountants in the same per iod. However,  the 

management  of the merged company believes that  ACME ’s 

financial statements for the year 2020, which was not reviewed by 

CPAs will not  have a mater ial impact .  

13.  Property,  plant  and equipment  

 

 Self-owned 

land 

 Housing and 

improvements 

 Machinery 

equipment 

 Other 

equipment 

 Construction 

in progress 

 

Total 

Cost              

Balance as of January 1, 

2019 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 774,313 

 

  $ 6,293,396 

 

  $ 96,115 

 

  $ 126,879 

 

  $ 7,518,932 

Increase      -     -     27,797     -     39,625     67,422 

Disposal      -     -   (  55,739 )   (  983 )     -   (  56,722 ) 

Internal transfer      -     3,922     88,484     893   (  93,299 )     - 

Balance as of December 31, 

2019 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 778,235 

 

  $ 6,353,938 

 

  $ 96,025 

 

  $ 73,205 

 

  $ 7,529,632 

Accumulated depreciation             

Balance as of January 1, 

2019 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 259,702 

 

  $ 3,678,096 

 

  $ 78,674 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,016,472 

Depreciation expenses     -     22,296     266,346     4,903     -     293,545 

Disposal      -     -   (  55,739 )   (  983 )     -   (  56,722 ) 

Balance as of December 31, 

2019 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 281,998 

 

  $ 3,888,703 

 

  $ 82,594 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,253,295 

             

Net amount as of December 

31, 2019 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 496,237 

 

  $ 2,465,235 

 

  $ 13,431 

 

  $ 73,205 

 

  $ 3,276,337 

Cost              

Balance as of January 1, 

2020 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 778,235 

 

  $ 6,353,938 

 

  $ 96,025 

 

  $ 73,205 

 

  $ 7,529,632 

Increase      -     -     26,163     -     258,664     284,827 

Disposal      -     -   (  42,008 )   (  53 )     -   (  42,061 ) 

Internal transfer      -     580     87,134     823   (  88,537 )     - 

Balance as of December 31, 

2020 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 778,815 

 

  $ 6,425,227 

 

  $ 96,795 

 

  $ 243,332 

 

  $ 7,772,398 

Accumulated depreciation             

Balance as of January 1, 

2020 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 281,998 

 

  $ 3,888,703 

 

  $ 82,594 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,253,295 

Depreciation expenses     -     21,537     278,282     4,316     -     304,135 

Disposal      -     -   (  42,008 )   (  53 )     -   (  42,061 ) 

Balance as of December 31, 

2020 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 303,535 

 

  $ 4,124,977 

 

  $ 86,857 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 4,515,369 

             

Net amount as of December 

31, 2020 

 

  $ 228,229 

 

  $ 475,280 

 

  $ 2,300,250 

 

  $ 9,938 

 

  $ 243,332 

 

  $ 3,257,029 

 

  There are no signs o f impairment  assessed for 2020 and 2019.  
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  Property,  plant  and equipment  is  depreciated on a st raight - line basis  

according to  the fo llowing years o f service:  

Building and improvements   

Factories, machine rooms and 

improvements thereof 

 15 to 40 years 

Office buildings, laboratories and 

improvements thereof 

    10 to 40 years

  

Warehouse building  11 to 45 years 

Engineering system  35 to 40 years 

Others   2 to 20 years  

Machinery equipment  3 to 22 years 

Other equipment  3 to 10 years 

 

  In order to  support  the relocat ion o f petrochemical storage facilit ies 

by Taiwan Internat ional Ports Corporat ion, Ltd.  (TIPC) in the old port  

area,  China General Termina l & Distr ibut ion Corporat ion (CGTD) leases  

the termina l facilit ies and back- line lands of Phase II Petrochemical Oil 

Storage and Transportat ion Center of Kaohsiung Port  Container Center,  

with the lease term from August  1,  2017 to July 31, 2042. The rent  will be 

paid quarter ly.  In addit ion, the Board of Directors of the Company 

approved the construct ion of the Intercont inental Phase II Petrochemica l 

Oil Products Center in 2019, and signed a contract  with CTCI Corporat ion 

on October 7,  2019, with a total investment  pr ice of NT$765,893 

thousand. As o f December 31, 2020, the Company has paid th e pro ject  

amount  of NT$211,724 thousand, which is  listed under t he construct ion in 

progress.  

14.  Lease agreement  

 (1) Right -to-use assets 

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Carrying amount of 

right-of-use assets     

  Transportation equipment    $ 424    $ - 

 

  2020  2019 

Increase of right- of -use assets    $ 847    $ - 

Depreciation expenses of right- 

of -use assets     

  Transportation equipment    $ 423    $ 421 
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  Besides,  the office in Taipei leased by the Company is sublet  to  

other company for business.  The relevant  right -to-use assets are 

recognized as property for investment .  Please refer to Note 15 

“Property for Investment”.  The amount  related to the forego ing r ight - 

of -use assets excludes the r ight -of-use assets that  conform to the 

definit ion o f property for investment .  

(2)  Lease liabilit ies  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Carrying amount of lease 

liabilities     

  Current     $ 5,981    $ 5,496 

  Non-current    $ 18,946    $ 24,501 

 

  The discount  rate range o f lease liabilit ies is as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Transportation equipment  1.06%  - 

Buildings   1.06%  1.06% 

 

 (3) Other lease informat ion 

  2020  2019 

Short-term lease expenses    $ 3,774    $ 3,375 

Total cash (outflow) of the 

lease   ( $ 9,989 )   ( $ 9,590 ) 

 

  The Company elects to  apply the exempt ion of recognit ion to  

build ings eligible for short -term leases and does not  r ecognize the 

relevant  r ight -to-use assets and lease liabilit ies for such leases.  

15.  Investment  propert ies 

  

Land  

Building and 

improvements  

Right-of-use 

assets  Total 

Cost          

Balance as of January 1, 2019    $ 370,202    $ 131,690    $ -    $ 501,892 
Retrospective effect of 

applicable IFRS 16 

 

   -     -     34,585     34,585 

Balance as of January 1, 2019 
(after re-preparation) 

 
   370,202     131,690     34,585     536,477 

Balance as of December 31, 

2019 

 

  $ 370,202    $ 131,690    $ 34,585    $ 536,477 
         

Accumulated depreciation         

Balance as of January 1, 2019    $ -    $ 70,571    $ -    $ 70,571 

Depreciation expenses     -     2,183     5,461     7,644 

 
 

    (continued) 
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Balance as of December 31, 

2019 

 

  $ -    $ 72,754    $ 5,461    $ 78,215 
         

Net amount as of December 

31, 2019 

 

  $ 370,202    $ 58,936    $ 29,124    $ 458,262 
         

Cost          

Balance as of January 1, 2020    $ 370,202    $ 131,690    $ 34,585    $ 536,477 

Balance as of December 31, 
2020 

 
  $ 370,202    $ 131,690    $ 34,585    $ 536,477 

         

Accumulated depreciation         
Balance as of January 1, 2020    $ -    $ 72,754    $ 5,461    $ 78,215 

Depreciation expenses     -     2,183     5,460     7,643 

Balance as of December 31, 
2020 

 
  $ -    $ 74,937    $ 10,921    $ 85,858 

         

Net amount as of December 

31, 2020 

 

  $ 370,202    $ 56,753    $ 23,664    $ 450,619 

 

  The r ight -of -use assets in property for investment  is the sublease o f 

the office leased by the Company for business and lease purpose.  

  The lease term of property for investment  is 5 years.  The lessee does 

not  have the preferent ial r ight  to  take over t he property for investment  at 

the end o f the lease term.  

  As of December 31, 2020, the total amount  of lease payments to  be 

received in the future for the leasing of property for investment  for  

business and lease purpose is as fo llows:  
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  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

First year    $ 15,910    $ 5,688 

Second year     15,547     4,599 

Third year     15,547     4,599 

Fourth year     11,188     4,599 

Fifth year     932     240 

    $ 59,124    $ 19,725 

 

  Except  for the recognit ion of depreciat ion expense, there is no  

significant  addit ion, disposal or impairment  o f the property fo r  

investment  of the merged company from January 1 to  December 31, 2019 

and 2020. Property for investment  is depreciated on a st raight - line basis 

according to  the fo llowing years o f service:  

Buildings and improvements thereof   

Main buildings and 

improvements thereof 

 5 to 50 years 

Right-of-use assets  6 years 

 

  The fair value for the land, investment  propert ies located in Linyuan 

Industr ial Park cannot  be reliably determined since this sect ion is an 

industr ial land with few comparable market  t rading informat ion and lit t le  

reliable alt ernat ive fa ir value est imat es.  

Bes ides,  the investment  propert ies,  such as the land (excluding that  

located in Linyuan Industr ia l Park),  housing and improvements thereo f 

are with fair value o f NT$ 1,136,629 thousand measured on December 31,  

2020. The fair value has not  been evaluated by an independent  evaluator 

and is only measured by the Company's management  applying the Grade 3 

input  value of the evaluat ion model commonly used by market  

part icipants.  The evaluat ion is based on the t ransact ion pr ice o f similar  

property in the adjacent  area.  The fair value of the Company’s property 

for investment  as at  December  31, 2020 will increase or decrease by 

NT$113,663 thousand when the t ransact ion pr ice o f the adjacent  area per  

ping increases or decreases by 10%.  

  The fair value o f the r ight -to-use asset  is est imated by the expected 

rental income deduct ing the net  payment  of all expected payments,  plus 
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the recognized the relevant  lease liabilit ies.  The fair value as o f 

December 31, 2020 is NT$ 61,968 thousand.  

16. BORROWINGS 

 (1) Short -term borrowings 

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Unsecured borrowing     

Bank loan    $ 700,000    $ 1,100,000 

 

  The interest  rates for revo lving bank loans are 0.80% -0.82% and 

0.90%-0.97% as at  31 December 2019  and 2020, respect ively.  

 (2) Short -term bills  payable (December 31, 2020: none)  

    December 31, 2019 

Commercial paper payable      $ 650,000  

Less: Discount of short-term 

bills payable  

 

 

 

 (  56 ) 

      $ 649,944  

     

Interest rate range    0.50%-0.77% 

 

 (3) Long-term borrowing  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Unsecured borrowing    $ 3,050,000    $ 3,950,000  

     

Interest rate range  0.89%-0.95%  1.00%-1.06% 

 

  In order to  ensure the suffic iency of the medium and long ter m 

working capital,  the Company signs medium- and long-term credit  

contracts with banks,  with each line o f credit  totaling NT$5,950,000 

thousand. The term of the credit  contracts shall expire successively 

before October 2023, and the total line of credit  shall be recyc led 

within the term of the contract . As of D ecember 31, 2020,  

NT$3,050,000 thousand has been ut ilized.  

  The current  rat io  and liabilit y rat io  of some o f the Company's  

borrowings shall not  be lower than the specified rat io  in the financia l 

statements.  In case of any discrepancy, the Company shall report to  the 

bank for improvement  measures.  

  As of December  31, 2020, the Company has no vio lat ions of the 

above rates.  
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17. Accounts payable  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Accounts payable (including 

related parties) 

 

 

 

 

Arising from operation    $ 253,993    $ 149,945 

 

  The average credit  per iod for accounts payable is one month.The 

Company has st ipulated a financia l r isk management  po licy to  ensure that  

all payments due are repaid within the agreed credit  per iod.  

18. Other payables  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Other payables     

Payables for salaries and 
bonuses  

 

  $ 91,546 

 

  $ 77,464 

Payables for utilities      37,093     35,655 

Payables on paid leave     13,517     13,983 

Payables on freight     12,099     9,079 

Payables for dividends     5,699     5,527 

Payables for equipment     5,694     5,025 

Payables for insurance      1,953     4,108 

Others      27,033     32,424 

    $ 194,634    $ 183,265 

 

19. Refund liabilit ies -  current  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Return and allowance    $ 5,899    $ 5,899 

 

  The product  returns and allowance that  the Company est imates may 

occur are recognized as refund liabilit ies in accordance with IFRS 15.  

20. Post -ret irement  benefit s plan  

 (1) Defined contribut ion plans  

  The pension system under Labor Pension Act  that  the Company 

applies is the defined-contr ibut ion ret irement  scheme administered by 

the government ,  which set  asides 6% of the employee ’s monthly salar y 

to  the ind ividua l account  of the Labor Insurance Bureau.  

 (2) Defined benefit  plan 

  The Company’s pension system under  the  Labor Standards Act  is a  

defined-benefit  ret irement  plan administered by the government .  The 

pension payment  of an employee is calculated on the basis o f his/her  
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length o f service and the average salary of the six months pr ior to  the 

approved ret irement  date.  For the years o f 2020 and 2019, the Company 

will allocate 10% of the employee’s gross monthly salary as the 

pension fund, which will be deposited into a special account  of the 

Bank o f Taiwan in the name of the Labor Ret irement  Reserve 

Supervisory Commit tee.  The specia l account  is entrusted to the 

management  o f the Bureau of Labor Funds, the Minist ry o f Labor,  and 

the Company has no r ight  to influence the investment  management  

st rategy.  

  The amount  of the defined benefit  plan inc luded in the 

individual’s balance sheet  is listed as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Present value of defined benefit 

obligations 

 

  $ 373,108 

 

  $ 406,749 

Fair value of planned assets   (  218,051 )   (  240,881 ) 

Net defined benefit liabilities    $ 155,057    $ 165,868 

  The changes on net  defined benefit  liabilit ies (assets) are as 

fo llows:  

 

 Present value 

of defined 

benefit 

obligations 

 

Fair value of 

planned assets 

 Net defined 

benefit 

liabilities 
(Assets) 

Balance as of January 1, 2019    $ 418,170   ( $ 209,500 )    $ 208,670 

Service cost       

Current service cost     3,950     -     3,950 

Interest expense (income)     3,576   (  1,794 )     1,782 

Recognized as profit or loss     7,526   (  1,794 )     5,732 

Remeasurement       

Remuneration for planned 

assets (except for the 

amount included in net 

interest) 

 

   -   (  8,173 )   (  8,173 ) 

Actuarial loss - change in 

financial assumptions 

 

   6,820     -     6,820 

Actuarial loss - experience 

adjustment 

 

 (  4,293 )     -   (  4,293 ) 

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 

 

   2,527   (  8,173 )   (  5,646 ) 

Contributions from the employer   (  2,128 )   (  40,760 )   (  42,888 ) 

Benefit payment   (  19,346 )     19,346     - 

Balance as of December 31, 

2019 

 

  $ 406,749   ( $ 240,881 )    $ 165,868 

(Cont inued) 
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(Cont inued)  

 

 

 Present value 

of defined 

benefit 

obligations  

Fair value of 

planned assets  

Net defined 

benefit 

liabilities 

(Assets) 

       

Balance as of January 1, 2020    $ 406,749   ( $ 240,881 )    $ 165,868 

Service cost       

Current service cost     3,276     -     3,276 

Interest expense (income)     2,436   (  1,524 )     912 

Recognized as profit or loss     5,712   (  1,524 )     4,188 

Remeasurement       

Remuneration for planned 

assets (except for the 

amount included in net 

interest) 

 

   -   (  7,953 )   (  7,953 ) 

Actuarial loss - change in 

financial assumptions 

 

   6,091     -     6,091 

Actuarial loss - experience 

adjustment 

 

   2,470     -     2,470 

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 

 

   8,561   (  7,953 )     608 

Contributions from the employer     -   (  15,607 )   (  15,607 ) 

Benefit payment   (  47,914 )     47,914     - 

Balance as of December 31, 

2020 

 

  $ 373,108   ( $ 218,051 )    $ 155,057 

 

  The Company is exposed to  the fo llowing r isks as a result  o f the 

pension system under the Labor Standards Act :  

 1). Investment  risk: the Bureau o f labor funds,  the Minist ry o f labor,  

invests the labor pension fund in the subject  mat ters,  such as 

domest ic ( foreign) equity secur it ies,  debt  secur it ies and bank 

deposits respect ively through it s own use and entrusted operat ion.  

However,  the amount  of planned assets allocated by the company 

is calculated based on the interest  rate of 2 -year fixed deposit  o f 

the local bank.  

 2). Interest  rate risk: the decrease of interest  rate on corporate bonds 

will increase the present  value o f the defined benefit  obligat ions,  

but  the return on the debt  investment  of the planned assets wil l 

also increase,  both of which will part ially o ffset  the effect  of the 

net  defined welfare liabilit ies.  
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 3). Salary r isk: the present  value of the benefit  obligat ions is  

determined by reference to  the future salar y o f the planned 

member.  Thus an increase in the salary o f a planned member wil l 

increase the present  value o f the defined benefit  obligat ions.  

The present  value of the Company’s defined benefit  obligat ions is  

calculated on an actuar ial manner by a qualified actuary. The majo r  

assumpt ions o f the measurement  date are as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Discount rate   0.38%  0.63% 

Expected salary increase rate  2.25%  2.25% 

 

  I f the mater ial actuar ial assumpt ions are reasonably possible to  

change separately,  the amount  that  would increase (decrease) the 

present  value o f the defined benefit  obligat ion if all other assumpt ions 

remain unchanged is as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Discount rate     

Increase by 0.25%   ( $ 6,091 )   ( $ 6,820 ) 

Decrease by 0.25%    $ 6,257    $ 7,012  

Expected salary increase rate     

Increase by 0.25%    $ 6,032    $ 6,775  

Decrease by 0.25%   ( $ 5,904 )   ( $ 6,625 ) 

 

  Since the actuar ial assumpt ions may be int errelated,  the single 

assumpt ion is unlikely to  occur,  therefore,  the above sensit ivit y 

analys is may not  reflect  the actual changes in the present  value o f the 

defined benefit  obligat ion.  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Expected amount to be 

allocated within 1 year 

 

  $ 50,000 

 

  $ 40,000 

Average maturity of defined 

benefit obligation 

 

6.7 years 

 

6.9 years 

 

21.  Equity 

 (1) Ordinary shares  
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  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Number of shares authorized 

(in thousands) 

 

   620,000 

 

   620,000 

Shares authorized    $ 6,200,000    $ 6,200,000 

Number of issued and fully 

paid shares (1,000 shares) 

 

   582,101 

 

   554,382 

Shares issued    $ 5,821,018    $ 5,543,827 

 

  Fully paid ordinary shares,  which have a par value of $10, carr y 

one vote per share and carry a r ight  to  dividends.  

  On June 12, 2020, the regular shareho lders ’ meet ing reso lved to  

issue new shares of 27,719 thousand with a value of NT$10 per share 

by dist r ibut ing shareho lders ’ dividends to  increase capital .  The paid-up 

capital was NT$5,821,018 thousand after the capital increase.  The 

above plan for free allocat ion o f new shares has been approved and 

declared effect ive by the Secur it ies and Futures Bureau o f the Financia l 

Supervisory Commission on July 2,  2020, and the Board of Directors 

has decided that  July 29, 2020 is t he base date for capital increase.  

 (2) Capita l surplus  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Unclaimed dividends    $ 22,313    $ 21,412 

Changes in capital surplus of 

associatess recognized at 

equity 

 

   10,959 

 

   2,988 

    $ 33,272    $ 24,400 

 

  Capital surplus which ar ises from the considerat ion received fro m 

issuance of shares ( including  considerat ion from issuance o f ordinar y 

shares) and donat ions may be used to  offset  a deficit ,  in  addit ion, when 

the Company has no defic it ,  such capit al surplus may be dist r ibuted as 

cash dividends or  share dividends up to a certain percentage of the 

Company’s paid- in capit al.  

  The capit al surplus ar ising from by the shareho lder ’s failure to  

receive the dividend due to  the expirat ion o f the t ime limit  can only 

cover the lo sses; the capita l surplus ar ising from the investment  at  

equity shall not  be used for any purpose.  

 (3) Retained earnings and dividends po licy 
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  In accordance with the provisions of the earnings dist ribut ion 

policy o f the Art icles of Associat ion o f the Company, if there is an 

after tax surplus in t he annual accounts of the Company, the lo ss o f 

previous years shall be covered first .  If there is st ill any remaining 

surplus,  it  shall be regarded as dist r ibutable surplus of the current  year  

after the allocat ion o f 10% of the statutory surplus reserve, and shall be 

regarded as cumulat ive dist r ibutable surplus togethe r with t he 

accumulated undist r ibuted surplus o f the previous year and the 

remaining balance after the specia l surplus reserve has been withdrawn 

or reverted as required by law or the competent  authority.  The Board o f 

Directors shall,  after drawing up a cas e for the dist r ibut ion of earnings,  

submit  it  to the shareho lders ’ meet ing for reso lut ion in accordance with 

the prescr ibed procedures,  and the shareho lders ’ meet ing may Please 

refer to Note 23 (7) of the Company's Ar t ic les o f Associat ion for the 

remunerat ion po licy for emplo yees and directors  retain all or part  of 

the earnings in light  of the bus iness condit ions.  

  When the Company decides to  dist r ibute the earnings,  the 

shareho lders’ dividends shall not  be less than 10% of the dist r ibutable 

earnings o f the current  year,  and the cash dividends shall not  be less 

than 10% of the total dividends,  because the Company’s industries are 

in the mature stage and in order to take into account  the R&D needs and 

diversified operat ions.  However,  if the annual dist r ibutable earnings 

per share is less than NT$0.1, it  may not  be dist r ibuted.  

  The statutory surplus reserves shall be held unt il the balance 

reaches the total paid-up stock capital o f the Company. The statutory 

surplus reserves may be used to  cover lo sses.  I f t he Company has no  

loss,  the port ion of statutory surplus reserves exceeding 25% of the 

total paid- in share capital may be allocated as stock capital and 

dist r ibuted in cash.  

  The Company has withdrawn and reverted the special surplus 

reserves in accordance with the provisions of the Jin Guan Zheng Fa Zi 

No. 1010012865 and the Q & A on the applicat ion o f the specia l surplus 

reserves after the adopt ion o f the Internat ional Fina ncial Report ing 

Standards (IFRSs).  
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  The Company held its regular shareho lders ' meet ing on June 12,  

2020 and June 24, 2019, and reso lved to pass the fo llowing earnings 

dist r ibut ion plan for the year 2019 and 2018, respect ively:  

  2019  2018 

Legal reserve    $ 85,058    $ 28,683 

Cash dividends    $ 332,630    $ 166,315 

Share dividends    $ 277,191    $ - 

Cash dividend per Share (NT$)    $ 0.6    $ 0.3 

Share dividends per share (NT$)    $ 0.5    $ - 

 

  The Company’s Board o f Directors proposed the fo llo wing annua l 

earnings dist r ibut ion plan for 2020 on March 5,  2021 :  

    2020 

Legal reserve      $ 107,798 

Cash dividends      $ 698,522 

Share dividends      $ 116,420 

Cash dividend per Share (NT$)      $ 1.2 

Share dividends per share (NT$)      $ 0.2 

 

  The earnings dist r ibut ion plan for the year 2020 is yet  to be 

decided by the regular shareho lders ’ meet ing expected to  be held on 

June 11, 2021.  

 (4) Other equity items  

 1). Exchange differences on t ranslat ing the financ ial statements o f 

foreign operat ions 

  2020  2019 

Balance at January 1   ( $ 221,959 )   ( $ 59,292 ) 

Incurred in the current year     

  Exchange differences 

on t ranslat ing the 

financial statements 

of foreign 

operat ions  

 

   41,058 

 

 (  192,308 ) 

  Share of exchange 

differences of 

subsidiaries and 

associates accounted for 

      using the equity method 

 

 (  5,315 ) 

 

 (  8,821 ) 

Related income tax   (  8,212 )     38,462 

Other comprehensive income 

for the current year 

 

   27,531 

 

 (  162,667 ) 

Balance at December 31  
 ( $ 194,428 ) 

 
 ( $ 221,959 ) 
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 2). Unrealized valuat ion gain ( lo ss) on financial assets at  FVTOCI  

  2020  2019 

Balance at January 1    $ 97,939   ( $ 1,065 ) 

Incurred in the current year     

  Unrealized profit and loss     

   Equity instruments     1,011,472     99,195 

  Share from subsidiaries and 

associates accounted for 

using the equity method     63,084     28,050 

  Related income tax   (  3,454 )     1,069 

Other comprehensive income for 

the current year     1,071,102     128,314 

The accumulated profit and loss 

of disposed equity instruments 

transferred to retained earnings

－incurred in the current year     -   (  1,573 ) 

Share from subsidiaries and 

associates accounted for using 

the equity method     26,873   (  27,737 ) 

Balance at December 31    $ 1,195,914    $ 97,939 

 

22. Revenue 

 (1) Revenue from contracts with customers  

  2020  2019 

Revenue from sale of goods    $ 5,514,958    $ 6,578,064 

 

 (2) Contract  balances  

 

 December 31, 

2020 

 December 31, 

2019 

 

January 1, 2019 

Contract liabilities    $ 28,930    $ 11,491     $ 17,303  

 

23.  Net  profit  ( lo ss) from cont inuing operat ions  

  Net profit  ( loss) from cont inuing operat ions inc luded the fo llowing:  

 (1) int erest  income 
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  2020  2019 

Interest income     

  Bank deposit    $ 2,688    $ 2,997 

  Financial assets at fair 

value through profit 

and loss     1,325     5,763 

  Reverse repurchase 

agreements 

collateralized by bonds     18     508 

    $ 4,031    $ 9,268 

 

 (2) Other incomes 

  2020  2019 

Rental income    $ 46,749    $ 46,070 

Dividend income     

  Financial assets at fair 

value through profit 

and loss     1,921     1,775 

  Investment in equity 

instrument at fair value 

through comprehensive 

income     101,764     81,003 

     103,685     82,778 

Others     7,595     11,104 

    $ 158,029    $ 139,952 

 

 (3) Other gains and losses  

  2020  2019 

Financial assets and financial 

liabilities (loss) profit     

  Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss    $ 99,599    $ 48,029 

  Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit and 

loss     2,018     3,080 

Loss on net foreign currency 

exchange    (  13,066 )   (  12,373 ) 

Loss on disposal of investments   (  527 )     - 

Others    (  14,562 )   (  13,168 ) 

    $ 73,462    $ 25,568 

 

 (4) Finance costs 

  2020  2019 

Bank loan interest    $ 42,239    $ 55,812 

Lease loan interest     298     351 

    $ 42,537    $ 56,163 
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  The Company has no interest  capitalizat ion in 2020 and 2019.  

 (5) Depreciat ion and amort iza t ion 

  2020  2019 

Property, plant and equipment    $ 304,135    $ 293,545 

Investment properties     7,643     7,644 

Right-of-use assets     423     421 

Intangible assets     35     35 

  Total     $ 312,236    $ 301,645 

     

Depreciation expense by 

function 

 

 

 

 

  Operating costs    $ 304,115    $ 293,476 

  Operation expenses     443     490 

  Other gains and loss     7,643     7,644 

    $ 312,201    $ 301,610 

     

Amortization expenses by 

function 

 

 

 

 

  Operating expenses    $ 35    $ 35 

 

 (6) Employee benefit  expenses  

  2020  2019 

Post-retirement benefits (Note 

20)     

  Defined contribution plans    $ 7,777    $ 7,570 

  Defined benefit plans     4,188     5,732 

     11,965     13,302 

Other employee benefits     347,180     363,920 

Total employee benefits 

expenses    $ 359,145    $ 377,222 

     

Summary by function     

  Operating costs    $ 298,386    $ 312,032 

  Operating expenses     60,759     65,190 

    $ 359,145    $ 377,222 

 

 (7) Employees and directors’ remunerat ion 

  The Company allocates employee ’s remunerat ion and director ’s 

remunerat ion at a rate of not less than 1% and not  more than 1% 

respect ively o f the pre-tax pro fit  before the deduct ion o f the 

remunerat ion for employees and directors in t he current  year.  The 

remunerat ion for emplo yees and directors for the year of 2020 and 2019 



- 62 - 

was reso lved by the Board o f Directors held on March 5,  2021 and 

March 5,  2020, respect ively as fo llows:  

Est imated proport ion 

  2020  2019 

  Cash  Cash 

Employees’ remuneration  1%  1% 

Directors’ remuneration  -  - 

 

Amount  

  2020  2019 

  Cash  Cash 

Employees’ remuneration    $ 12,937    $ 9,929 

Directors’ remuneration     -     - 

 

  I f there is any change in the amount  after the publicat ion date o f 

the annual individual financial statement s,  it  shall be t reated as the 

change of account ing est imate and be adjusted and accounted in the 

next  year.  

  There is no difference between the actual allotment  of 

remunerat ion for employees and directors for the years 2019 and 2018 

and the amount  recognized in the individual financial statements fo r  

the years 2019 and 2018.  

  Informat ion on the remunerat ion o f employees and directors as 

determined by the Board of Directors of the Company can be found at  

the open Market  Observat ion Post  System of the Taiwa n Stock 

Exchange.  

 (8) Gains or losses on foreign currency exchange  

  2020  2019 

Total foreign exchange gains    $ 23,985    $ 31,888 

Total foreign exchange losses   (  37,051 )   (  44,261 ) 

Net gain (loss)   ( $ 13,066 )   ( $ 12,373 ) 

 

24.   Income tax relat ing to  cont inuing operat ions  

 (1) The major components of income tax expenses recognized in pro fit  and 

loss 
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  2020  2019 

Current income tax     

  Incurred in the current 

year 

 

  $ 180,367 

 

  $ 149,016 

  Levy on undistributed 

earnings 

 

   5,771 

 

   5,941 

  Return tax on earnings of 

subsidiaries 

 

   3,823 

 

   - 

  Adjustment of prior years   (  1,004 )     202 

     188,957     155,159 

Deferred income tax     

  Incurred in the current 

year 

 

 (  2,231 ) 

 

   6,674 

  Impact of deferred income 

tax on return of earnings of 

subsidiaries 

 

 (  9,558 ) 

 

   - 

  Adjustment of prior years     -     85 

   (  11,789 )     6,759 

Income tax expense recognized 

in profit or loss 

 

  $ 177,168 

 

  $ 161,918 

 

  Adjustment  o f account ing income and income tax expens e is a s 

fo llows:  

  2020  2019 

Profit before tax from 

continuing operations 

 

  $ 1,280,755 

 

  $ 982,939 

Income tax expense of net 

profit before tax calculated 

at statutory tax rate 

 

  $ 256,151 

 

  $ 196,588 

Nondeductible expenses in 

determining taxable income 

 

 (  47,735 ) 

 

 (  23,328 ) 

Tax-free income   (  39,838 )   (  17,570 ) 

Levy on undistributed earnings     5,771     5,941 

Return tax on earnings of 

subsidiaries 

 

   3,823 

 

   - 

The current income tax of 

previous years adjusted in 

the current year 

 

 (  1,004 ) 

 

   287 

Income tax expense recognized 

in profit or loss 

 

  $ 177,168 

 

  $ 161,918 

 

  In July 2019, the President  of our country announced the 

amendment  to  the Regulat ions on Industr ial Innovat ion, st ipulat ing that  

the construct ion or purchase o f specific assets or techno logies with the 

und ist r ibuted earnings from 2018 can be listed as the deduct ion items  
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for the calculat ion o f undist r ibuted earnings.  In calculat ing the 

und ist r ibuted earnings tax, the Company only subtracts the amount  of 

capital expenditure actually reinvested.  

 (2) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income  

  2020  2019 

Deferred income tax     

Incurred in the current year     

  －Translation of foreign 

operations   ( $ 8,212 )    $ 38,462 

  －Unrealized profit and 

loss of financial assets  

at fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income   (  3,454 )     1,069 

  －Remeasurement of 

defined benefit plan     122   (  1,129 ) 

Income tax profit recognized in 

other comprehensive income   ( $ 11,544 )    $ 38,402 

 

 (3) Current  income tax liabilit y  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Current  income tax 

liabilit y 

 

  $ 185,963 

 

  $ 146,105 

 

 (4) Deferred tax assets and liabilit ies  

  The changes of deferred tax assets and liabilit ies are as fo llows:  

2020 
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Opening 

balance 

 

Recognized 

in profit and 

loss 

 Recognized 

in other 

comprehens

ive income 

 

Closing 

balance 

Deferred tax assets         

Temporary difference         

Unrealized inventory 

falling price loss 

 

  $ 107 

 

 ( $ 82 ) 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ 25 

Unrealized impairment 

loss from inventory 

of supplies 

 

   7,188 

 

   791 

 

   - 

 

   7,979 

Unrealized sales 

allowance 

 

   1,180 

 

   - 

 

   - 

 

   1,180 

Unrealized material 

loss 

 

   1,215 

 

 (  124 ) 

 

   - 

 

   1,091 

Profit and loss of 

unrealized financial 

liabilities assessed 

 

   - 

 

   782 

 

   - 

 

   782 

Leave payable     2,535   (  92 )     -     2,443 

Defined benefit 

retirement plan 

 

   33,277 

 

 (  2,249 ) 

 

   122 

 

   31,150 

Inventory accounting 

and tax difference 

 

   284 

 

 (  216 ) 

 

   - 

 

   68 

Exchange balance of 

foreign operating 

institutions 

 

   45,612 

 

   - 

 

 (  8,212 ) 

 

   37,400 

Unrealized conversion 

loss 

 

   1,022 

 

 (  1,022 ) 

 

   - 

 

   - 

    $ 92,420   ( $ 2,212 )   ( $ 8,090 )    $ 82,118 

Deferred tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         

Allowance for land 

value increment tax 

 

 ( $ 21,469 ) 

 

  $ - 

 

  $ - 

 

 ( $ 21,469 ) 

Allowance for bad 

debts 

 

 (  267 ) 

 

   - 

 

   - 

 

 (  267 ) 

Unrealized conversion 

benefit 

 

   - 

 

 (  626 ) 

 

   - 

 

 (  626 ) 

Tax difference for 

depreciation tax 

included 

 

 (  422 ) 

 

   29 

 

   - 

 

 (  393 ) 

Investment profit 

recognized at equity 

 

 (  28,647 ) 

 

   14,579 

 

   - 

 

 (  14,068 ) 

Profit and loss of 

unrealized 

financial assets 

assessed 

 

 (  1,850 ) 

 

   19 

 

 (  3,454 ) 

 

 (  5,285 ) 

   ( $ 52,655 )    $ 14,001   ( $ 3,454 )   ( $ 42,108 ) 
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2019 

 

 

Opening 

balance 

 

Recognized 

in profit and 

loss 

 Recognized 

in other 

comprehens

ive income 

 

Closing 

balance 

Deferred tax assets         

Temporary difference         

Unrealized inventory 

falling price loss 

 

  $ 915  

 

 ( $ 808 ) 

 

  $ -  

 

  $ 107  

Unrealized impairment 

loss from inventory 

of supplies 

 

   6,938  

 

   250  

 

   -  

 

   7,188  

Unrealized sales 

allowance 

 

   1,180  

 

   -  

 

   -  

 

   1,180  

Unrealized material 

loss 

 

   1,316  

 

 (  101 ) 

 

   -  

 

   1,215  

Profit and loss of 

unrealized financial 

liabilities assessed 

 

   415  

 

 (  415 ) 

 

   -  

 

   -  

Leave payable     2,628    (  93 )     -      2,535  

Defined benefit 

retirement plan 

 

   41,515  

 

 (  7,109 ) 

 

 (  1,129 ) 

 

   33,277  

Inventory accounting 

and tax difference 

 

   57  

 

   227  

 

   -  

 

   284  

Exchange balance of 

foreign operating 

institutions 

 

   7,150  

 

   -  

 

   38,462  

 

   45,612  

Unrealized conversion 

loss 

 

   - 

 

   1,022 

 

   - 

 

   1,022 

    $ 62,114    ( $ 7,027 )    $ 37,333     $ 92,420  

Deferred tax liabilities         

Temporary difference         

Allowance for land 

value increment tax 

 

 ( $ 21,469 ) 

 

  $ -  

 

  $ -  

 

 ( $ 21,469 ) 

Allowance for bad 

debts 

 

 (  267 ) 

 

   -  

 

   -  

 

 (  267 ) 

Unrealized conversion 

benefit 

 

 (  548 ) 

 

   548  

 

   -  

 

   -  

Tax difference for 

depreciation tax 

included 

 

 (  435 ) 

 

   13  

 

   -  

 

 (  422 ) 

Investment profit 

recognized at equity 

 

 (  28,372 ) 

 

 (  275 ) 

 

   -  

 

 (  28,647 ) 

Profit and loss of 

unrealized 

financial assets 

assessed 

 

 (  2,901 ) 

 

 (  18 ) 

 

   1,069 

 

 (  1,850 ) 

   ( $ 53,992 )    $ 268     $ 1,069    ( $ 52,655 ) 
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 (5) Income tax assessments  

  The Company’s pro fit -seeking enterpr ise income tax set t lement  

and declarat ion has been approved by the tax ing author ity unt il 2018.  

5.  Earnings per share  

Unit : NT$ per share  

  2020  2019 

Basic EPS    $ 1.90    $ 1.41  

Diluted EPS    $ 1.89    $ 1.41  

 

  In calculat ing earnings per share,  the impact  of the stock grants has 

been adjusted ret rospect ively.  The base date of the stock grants is July 29,  

2020. Because o f the ret roact ive adjustment ,  the changes o f basic and 

earnings per share in 2019 are as fo llows:  

Unit : NT$ per share  

  Before retroactive 

a d j u s t m e n t 

 After  retroact ive 

a d j u s t m e n t 

Basic EPS    $ 1.48    $ 1.41 

Diluted EPS    $ 1.48    $ 1.41 

  The weighted average number o f earnings and  common shares used 

to  calculate earnings per share is as fo llows:  

Net  profit  for the year  

  2020  2019 

Net profit used to calculate basic 

and diluted EPS 

 

  $ 1,103,587 

 

  $ 821,021 

 

Unit : 1,000 shares  

  2020  2019 

Number of share     

The weighted average number of 

ordinary shares used to 

calculate basic EPS 

 

   582,102 

 

   582,102 

Impact of dilutive potential 

ordinary shares: 

 

 

 

 

  Employee’s remuneration     786     714 

The weighted average number of 

ordinary shares used to 

calculate diluted EPS 

 

   582,888 

 

   582,816 

 

  I f the Company elects to  pay its emplo yees in stock or in cash,  

assuming that  the compensat ion will be paid in stock and if the potent ia l 

common stock is dilut ive,  the weighted average shares outstanding will be 
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inc luded in the ca lculat ion o f diluted earnings per share .  The d ilut ion o f 

potent ial common stock will also cont inue to  be taken into account  in the 

calculat ion o f diluted earnings per share before the number o f shares paid 

in the next  annual reso lut ion.  

26. Capita l r isk management  

  The Company conducts capit al management  to  ensure that  the 

Company is able to  cont inue as a go ing concern and maximize shareho lder  

returns by maximiz ing debt  and equit y balances.The Company ’s overa l l 

st rategy has stayed unchanged since 2013.  

  The capit a l st ructure of the Company consists o f net  debt  ( i.e. ,  

borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents) and equity ( i.e. ,  stock 

capital,  capital reserves,  retained earnings and other equity items)  

att ributable to  the owners of the Company.  

27. Financia l inst ruments 

 (1) Informat ion on fair va lue- financial inst rument  not  at fair value  

  The Company’s management  believes that  the carrying amounts o f 

financial assets and liabilit ies not  at  fair  value are close to  their fa ir  

values 

 (2) Informat ion on fair value-financia l inst ruments at  fair va lue on a 

repet it ive basis  

 1). Grade o f fair va lue  

December 31, 2020  

  Grade 1  Grade 2  Grade 3  Total 

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss         

Domestic listed (OTC)   
shares    $ 175,885    $ -    $ -    $ 175,885 

Mutual funds     831,415     -     -     831,415 
    $ 1,007,300    $ -    $ -    $ 1,007,300 
Financial assets at fair value 

through other 

comprehensive income         

Investment in equity 

instruments         

  Domestic listed (OTC) 

shares    $ 3,063,507    $ -    $ -    $ 3,063,507 
  Domestic unlisted 

(OTC) shares     -     -     275,798     275,798 
    $ 3,063,507    $ -    $ 275,798    $ 3,339,305 
Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit and 

loss         

Derivatives     $ -    $ 3,912    $ -    $ 3,912 
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December 31, 2019  

  Grade 1  Grade 2  Grade 3  Total 

Financial assets at fair 

value through profit 

and loss         

Derivatives   $ -    $ 94    $ -    $ 94 

Domestic listed (OTC) 

shares     123,179     -     -     123,179 

Mutual funds    2,462,023     -     -    2,462,023 

    $2,585,202    $ 94    $ -    $2,585,296 

Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income         

Investment in equity          

 Domestic listed 

(OTC) shares    $2,124,191    $ -    $ -    $2,124,191 

  Domestic unlisted 

(OTC) shares     -     -     237,776     237,776 

    $2,124,191    $ -    $ 237,776    $2,361,967 

 

  There is no transfer between Grade 1 and Grade 2 fair va lue 

measurement  in 2020 and 2019.  

 2). Adjustment  of financia l inst ruments at  Grade 3 fair value  

2020 

 

 Financial assets at 

fair value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

F i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  Equity instruments 

Balance at January 1, 2020    $ 237,776 

Recognized in other comprehensive income 

(unrealized profit and loss of financial assets at 

fair value through other comprehensive income) 

 

   72,157 

Return of share funds by the invested company 

(Note 8) 

 

 (  34,135 ) 

Balance at December 31, 2020    $ 275,798 
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2019 

 

 Financial assets at 

fair value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

F i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  Equity instruments 

Balance at January 1, 2019    $ 247,559  

Recognized in other comprehensive income 

(unrealized profit and loss of financial assets at 

fair value through other comprehensive income) 

 

   8,283  

Return of share funds by the invested company 

(Note 8) 

 

 (  18,066 ) 

Balance at December 31, 2019    $ 237,776  

 

 3). Evaluat ion techniques and input  values fo r Grade 2 fair value  

Category of financial 

instruments 

 

Evaluat ion techniques and input  values  

Derivatives - forward 

foreign exchange 

contracts 

 Discounted cash flow method: the future cash 

flow is estimated according to the observable 

forward exchange rate at the closing period 

and the exchange rate stipulated in the 

contract, and discounted at the discount rate 

that can reflect the credit risk of the 

counterparties. 

 

 4). Evaluat ion techniques and input  values fo r Grade 3 fair value  

 

  The financia l department  is responsible for the independent  

ver ificat ion o f fair value o f financial inst ruments in the 

Company’s evaluat ion process o f Grade 3 fair value,  making the 

evaluat ion resu lts close to  the market  state through independent  

source data,  and regular ly reviewing to ensure that  the evaluat ion 

result s are reasonable.  The Company evaluates unlisted (OTC) 

equity investments at  home and abroad with the asset  method. The 

determinat ion of their fair va lue is based on the latest  net  worth of 

the invested company and the financia l and operat ing status of the 

observable company. I f the liquidity discount  decreases,  the fair  

value o f such investments will increase.  On December 31, 2020,  

when the net  asset  value of the invested company 
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increases/decreases by 1%, the fair value will increase/decrease 

by NT$ 2,758 thousand.  

 (3) Types of financial inst ruments  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Financial assets     

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss     

  Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive income    $ 1,007,300    $ 2,585,296 

Financial assets at amortized 

cost (Note 1)     1,076,517     1,368,066 

Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income     

  Investment in equity 

instruments     3,339,305     2,361,967 

     

Financial liabilities     

Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit and loss     

  Financial liabilities held for 

trading      3,912     - 

Financial liabilities at amortized 

cost (Note 2)     4,248,609     6,199,859 

 

Note 1: Balance refers to the financial assets at  amort ized cost ,  

inc luding cash and cash equiva lents,  accounts receivable 

( including related part ies) and other receivables ( including 

related part ies).  

Note 2:Balance refers to  the financial liabi lit ies at  amort ized cost ,  

inc luding short -term borrowings,  short -term notes payable,  

accounts payable ( including related par t ies),  other payables 

( including related part ies) and long-term borrowings.  

 (4) The purpose and po licy o f financ ial r isk management  

  The Company’s r isk contro l and hedging st rategies are affected by 

the operat ing environment ,  however,  the Company has taken 

appropr iate r isk management  and contro l act ions based on the nature o f 

the business and the pr inciple o f r isk diversificat ion. Such r isks 

inc lude market  risks ( including exchange rate risks,  interest  rate risks 

and other pr ice r isks),  credit  r isks and liquidit y r isks.  
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 1). Market  r isk  

  The main market  r isks to be borne by the  Company as a result  

of the Company’s operat ions are the r isk of foreign exchange rate 

fluctuat ions and the r isk o f interest  rate fluctuat ions.  

  There has been no change in the Company’s exposure to  

market  risks in respect  of financia l inst ruments and the  way in 

which such exposure is managed and measured.  

①  Exchange rate r isk  

  The Company is engaged in foreign currency 

denominated sales and purchase t ransact ions,  which expose 

the Company to the r isk o f exchange rate fluctuat ions.  I n 

order to  avoid the decrease in the value of foreign currency 

assets and the fluctuat ion of future cash flow caused by 

exchange rate fluctuat ions,  the Company avo ids the impact  o f 

exchange rate fluctuat ions by natural offset  of foreign 

currency assets and liabilit ies,  and then avo ids the relevant  

r isks by combining the net  posit ion o f foreign currency wit h 

forward foreign exchange contracts.  The Company mit igates 

the impact  of such r isks by hedging against  these r isks 

through forward foreign exchange contracts.  The use o f 

forward foreign exchange contracts shall be governed by 

polic ies adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company.  

Internal auditors cont inuously review po licy compliance and 

r isk limits.  The Company does not  deal in forward foreign 

exchange contracts for speculat ive purposes.  

  Please refer to  Note 30 for the carrying amount  of t he 

Company’s monetary assets and monetary liabilit ies in 

non-funct ional currencies as o f the balance sheet  date.  Please 

refer to Note 7 for carrying amount  of der ivat ive wit h 

addit ional exchange rate exposure.  

Sensit ivity analys is  

  The sensit ivit y analys is of foreign currency exchange 

rate risk is  mainly based on the calculat ion o f foreign 

currency monetary it ems (mainly US do llar items) at  the end 
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of the financial report ing per iod. I f the Company’s funct iona l 

currency appreciates/depreciates by 3% against  the US dollar,  

the Company’s net  profit  before tax in 2020 wil l 

decrease/ increase by NT$5,983 thousand;  and that  in 2019 

will decrease/ increase by NT$7,269 thousand  

  As the above sensit ivit y analys is is  based on the amount  

of foreign currency exposure at  the balance sheet  date,  the 

management  believes that  the sensit ivity analys is can not  

reflect  the mid year exposure.  

②  Interest  rate risk  

  The fa ir value is exposed to  risks as a result  of interest  

rate changes because the Company ho lds the financial asset s 

and liabilit ies with fixed int erest  rate; the cash flow is 

exposed to  risks as a result  o f interest  rate changes because 

of the financia l assets and liabilit ies with float ing interest  

rate.  The Company’s management  regular ly monitors the 

changes in market  interest  rate so that  the interest  rate of the 

Company will be close to  the market  interest  rate to  respond 

to the r isks ar is ing from the changes in market  interest  rate.  

  The carrying amount  of the Company’s financia l asset s 

and financia l liabilit ies exposed to  interest  rate risk on the 

balance sheet  date is as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Interest rate risk with fair 

value 

 

 

 

 

  －Financial assets    $ 292,121    $ 555,654 

  －Financial liabilities     724,927     1,779,941 

Interest rate risk with cash 

flow 

 

 

 

 

  －Financial assets     18,499     24,852 

  －Financial liabilities     3,050,000     3,950,000 

 

Sensit ivity analys is  

  The sensit ivity analys is o f interest  rate risk is based on 

the financia l assets and financia l liabilit ies on the balance 

sheet  date.  The Company takes a 0.5% r ise/ fall in market  
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int erest  rate as a reasonable r isk assessment  for report ing 

int erest  rate changes to  the management .  With all other  

var iables unchanged, market  interest  rates r ise / fall by 0.5%,  

the financ ial assets and financia l liabilit ies with cash flow 

int erest  rate r isk will reduce / increase the Company’s pre-tax 

net  profit  by NT$15,158 thousand in 2020 and NT$ 19,626 

thousand in 2019.  

③  Other pr ice r isk  

  The Company’s ho ldings o f domest ic and foreign stocks 

and fund benefit  cert ificates and other secur it ies investment  

result ing in fair value explosion r isk.  The management  o f the 

Company manages r isk by ho lding di fferent  risk port fo lios.  

In addit ion, the Company assigns a specific team to monitor  

pr ice r isk.  

Sensit ivity analys is  

  The fo llowing sensit ivity analys is is  based on the pr ice 

of secur it ies as of the balance sheet  date.  However,  in the 

financial assets at  fair value through pro fit and loss in which 

the Company invests,  the risk of price fluctuat ion o f 

monetary market  funds is very low, so it  is  not  included in the 

analys is.  

 I f the equity pr ice increases/decreases by 5%, the net  

profit  before tax for 2020 and 2019 will increase/decrease by 

NT$11,864 thousand and NT$17,853 thousand, respect ively 

due to  the increase/decrease in the fair  va lue o f financia l 

assets (excluding monetary market  fund investments) as 

measured through pro fit  and loss.  Other comprehens ive 

income before tax for 2020 and 2019 will be 

increased/decreased by NT$166,965 thousand and  

NT$118,098 thousand due to  the increase/decrease in t he fair  

value o f financial assets at  fair value through other  

comprehensive income.  

 2). Credit  r isk  
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  Cred it  r isk refers to  the r isk that  the counterparty default s on 

it s contractual obligat ions and causes financia l lo ss to the 

Company. As o f the balance sheet  date,  the largest  credit  r isk that  

the Company may incur financial lo sses due to  the failure of  t he 

counterparty to  fulfill it s obligat ions and the Company’s provis io n 

of financial guarantees mainly comes from:  

①  The carrying amount  of financial assets recognized in the 

   individual balance sheet .  

②  The maximum amount  that  the Company may have to pay for 

   providing financ ial guarantee does not  consider the   

   possibilit y o f occurrence.  

  The Company’s po licy is to reduce the r isk o f financial lo ss 

by t rading only with companies with good credit  standing, and to  

cont inuously monitor the credit  r isk and the credit  standing o f 

companies with good credit  standing.  

  The Company’s accounts receivable cover a wide range o f 

customers who are from different  regions  instead o f concentrat ing 

on single customer or region. Besides,  the Company cont inuously 

evaluates the financia l status of customers of accounts receivable,  

therefore,  they are subject  to  limit ed credit  risk.  

 3). Liquidit y r isk  

  The management  of the Company provides working capit a l 

and reduces liquidity r isk by maint aining an adequate posit ion o f 

cash, cash equivalents and bank financing.  

  The Company has sufficient  working capital to meet  its  

obligat ions,  therefore,  there is no liquidity r isk due to  inabilit y to  

raise funds to meet  contractual obligat ions.  

①  Liquidit y and interest  rate risk statement  

  The fo llowing statement  provides a detailed ana lysis o f 

the matur it y o f t he contracts for the Company’s remaining 

non-der ivat ive financial liabilit ies over the agreed repayment  

per iod, based on the ear liest  date on which the Company ma y 

be required to  repay and based on the undiscounted cash 

flows o f the financia l liabilit ies.  
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December 31, 2020  

 

 Weighted 

average 
effective rate 

(%) 

 

Pay on demand 
or less than 1 

year 

 

1 to 5 years 

 

More than 5 

years 

Non-derivative 

financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Non-interest 

bearing liabilities 

   

  $ 379,323 

 

  $ 27,740 

 

  $ - 

Lease liability  1.06%     6,216     19,290     - 

Instrument with 

fixed interest rate 

  

0.81% 

   

 700,000 

 

   - 

 

   - 

Instrument with 

floating interest 
rate 

  

 
0.91% 

 

   - 

 

   3,050,000 

 

   - 

      $ 1,085,539    $ 3,097,030    $ - 

 

December 31, 2019  

 

 Weighted 

average 

effective rate 

(%) 

 

Pay on demand 

or less than 1 

year 

 

1 to 5 years 

 

More than 5 

years 

Non-derivative 
financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Non-interest 

bearing liabilities 

   

  $ 381,101 

 

  $ 41,350 

 

  $ - 

Lease liability  1.06%     5,496     22,576     1,925 

Instrument with 

fixed interest rate 

  

0.83% 

 

   1,750,000 

 

   - 

 

   - 

Instrument with 

floating interest 

rate 

  

 

1.05% 

 

   - 

 

   3,950,000 

 

   - 

      $ 2,136,597    $ 4,013,926    $ 1,925 

 

②  Financing amount  

  As for the Company, bank loan is an important  source o f 

liquid ity.  The Company’s unused bank financing on the 

balance sheet  date is as fo llows:  

  December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 

Bank loan line     

  －Amount used    $ 3,750,000    $ 5,700,000  

  －Amount unused     5,714,800     3,029,800 

    $ 9,464,800    $ 8,729,800  

 

28.  Transact ions with related part ies  
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  The ult imate parent  company o f the Company is USI Corporat ion 

(USI),  which indirect ly held 36.08% of the Company’s ordinary shares in  

2020, December 31 and 2019.  

  Except  as otherwise disclosed in the Notes,  the Company t ransact s 

with its related part ies as fo llows:  

 (1) The names and relat ionships of related part ies invo lved in major  

t ransact ions with the Company are summarized as fo llows:  

Name of Relate d Parties  Relationship with the 

Company 

USI Corporation (USI)  Ultimate parent 

company 

Union Polymer International Investment Corporation (Union 

Polymer) 

 Parent company 

USI International Corp. (USIIC)  Subsidiary  

USI Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (USITA)  Subsidiary  

APC Investment Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary  

China General Plastics Corporation (CGPC)  Associates 

China General Terminal & Distribution Corporation (CGTD)  Associates 

Acme Electronics Corporation (ACME)   Associates 

USI Optronics Corporation (USIO)  Associates 

Swanson Plastics Corporation  (SPC)  Associates 

Taiwan VCM Corporation (TVCM)  Associates 

CGPC Polymer Corporation  (CGPCP)  Associates 

Forever Young Company Limited (Forever Young)  Associates 

Swanson Technologies Corporation (STC)  Associates 

Taita Chemical Company, Limited (TTC)  Fraternal company 

Taiwan United Venture Management Corporation (TUVM)  Fraternal company 

USI Management Consulting Corporation (UM)  Fraternal company 

USIFE Investment Co., Ltd. (USII)  Fraternal company 

INOMA Corporation (INOMA)  Fraternal company 

Chong Loong Trading Co., Ltd. (CLT)  Fraternal company 

USI (Hong Kong)(USI (HK))  Fraternal company 

USI Education Foundation (USIF)  Substantial related 

party 

 

 (2) Sales o f goods 
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Category of related parties／
names 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI Corporation (USI)    $ 662,692    $ 842,692 

Associates     37,375     55,290 

Fellow subsidiary     14,052     20,973 

Subsidiary      63,613     113,478 

    $ 777,732    $ 1,032,433 

 

  The pr ice and terms o f sale to  a related party are comparable to  

those of the unrelated part ies.  

 (3) Purchases o f goods 

Category of related parties／
name 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI    $ 98,421    $ 153,099 

Associatess     28,322     33,572 

    $ 126,743    $ 186,671 

 

  The t ransact ion terms and pr ices o f the goods purc hased from the 

related part ies are comparable to those of the unrelated part ies.  

 (4) Management  fee (under general and administ rat ive expenses)  

Category of related parties／
name 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI    $ 8,470    $ 8,403 

Fellow subsidiary     

UM     39,208     42,488 

    $ 47,678    $ 50,891 

 

 (5) Lease arrangements -  Company is lessee  

Lease expenses  

Category of related parties／
name 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI    $ 2,783    $ 2,424 

Subsidiaries     -     11 

    $ 2,783    $ 2,435 

 

 (6) Lease agreement  - Company is lessor  

Lease income 
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Category of related parties／
name 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Ultimate parent company    $ 3,534    $ 2,819 

Parent company     36     176 

Subsidiaries      142     142 
Associate     

  TVCM     12,680     12,912 

  Others     6,500     6,063 

     19,187     18,982 

Fellow subsidiary     

TTC     6,686     7,156 

  Others     1,869     1,891 

     8,555     9,047 

    $ 31,440    $ 31,152 

 

  The associatess lease the pipeline from the Company for a per iod 

of one year.  I f the contract  is expired without a statement ,  it  shall be 

regarded as renewal.  The rent  shall be calculated on the basis o f actua l 

operat ion vo lume and paid monthly.  

 (7) Donat ion expenses (under general and administ rat ive expenses)  

Category of related parties／
name 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Substantive party－ 

USI Education Foundation 

(USIF) 

 

  $ 3,000 

 

  $ 2,000 

 

 (8) Management  service income (under other income)  

Category of related parties／
name 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Associatess    $ 1,905    $ 1,577 

 

 (9) Investment  consultant  fee (under other gains and losses)  

Category of related parties／
name 

 

2020 

 

2019 

Fellow subsidiary     

  Taiwan United Venture 

Management Corporation 

(TUVM) 

   $ 1,397    $ 1,734 
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 (10) Accounts receivable  

Category of related parties／
n a m e 

 

December 31, 2020 

 

December 31, 2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI    $ 189,988    $ 147,057 

Associatess     3,549     6,211 

Subsidiaries     

  USI Trading (Shanghai) 

Co., Ltd. (USIT) 

 

   12,462 

 

   27,988 

Fellow subsidiary     3,876     3,516 

    $ 209,875    $ 184,772 

 

(11) Other receivables  

Category of related parties／
n a m e 

 

December 31, 2020 

 

December 31, 2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI    $ 58    $ 1,974 

Associatess     

  China General Terminal & 

Distribution Corporation 

(CGTD) 

 

   1,000 

 

   832 

  CGPC Polymer 

Corporation (CGPCP) 

 

   197 

 

   182 

  Others      90     214 

     1,287     1,228 

Fellow subsidiary     

  Taita Chemical Company, 

Limited (TTC) 

 

   617 

 

   667 

  Others      3     108 

     620     775 

    $ 1,965    $ 3,977 

 

  Other receivables -  related party payments are mainly payment s 

made by the ult imate parent  company and associates to  the Company 

for rent ing o ffices.  

(12) Accounts payable  

Category of related parties／
n a m e 

 

December 31, 2020 

 

December 31, 2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI    $ 12,387    $ 12,940 

Associatess     

  Swanson Plastics 

Corporation (SPC) 

 

   3,243 

 

   2,727 

    $ 15,630    $ 15,667 

 



- 81 - 

(13) Other payables  

Category of related parties／
n a m e 

 

December 31, 2020 

 

December 31, 2019 

Ultimate parent company     

  USI    $ 46,442    $ 160,382 

Subsidiaries      98     120 

Associatess     2,946     5,590 

Fellow subsidiary     496     613 

    $ 49,982    $ 166,705 

 

  Other Payables -  Related-Party Payments are mainly the amount  o f 

ethylene allocated and purchased by the Company from the ult imate 

parent  company.  

(14) Remunerat ion o f major management  

  Total remunerat ion for directors and other key management  in 

2020 and 2019 is as fo llows:  

  2020  2019 

Short-term employee benefits    $ 16,355    $ 14,922 

Post-retirement benefits     -     27 

    $ 16,355    $ 14,949 

 

  Remunerat ion o f directors and other key management  is  

determined by the Remunerat ion Committee based on the individua l 

performance and market  t rends.  

29.  Significant  Cont ingent  Liabilit ies and Unrecognized Contractua l 

Commitments  

 (1) Mater ial commitments  

  The ba lance o f our L/C outstanding as at  December 31, 2020 was 

NT $370,000 thousand.  

 (2) Mater ial contracts 

 1). On Apr il 17, 2014, the Company and USI entered into a jo int  

venture agreement  concerning Gulei Investment .  The 

counter-part ies o f the agreement  or commitment  are  Ho Tung 

Chemical  Corp. ,  LCY Chemica l CORP. ,  Hsin Tay Petroleum  

Co.,  Ltd. ,  Chenergy Global Corporat ion, and Lien Hwa Indust r ia l 

Holdings Corp. The main contents of the contract  are as fo llows:  

(1) the shareho lder invests and establishes Ever Victory Globa l 

Ltd.  (hereinaft er referred to  as “the Jo int  Venture”) in accordance 
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with the contract ,  and agrees that  Dynamic Ever Invest ment s 

Limited(the “Hong Kong Company”),  which the shareho lders o f 

the Company have a 100% shareho lding located in Hong Kong,  

will invest  in seven products including oil refining and ethylene 

product ion in Gule i Garden, Zhangzhou, Fujian Province, China,  

and other businesses approved by the competent  author ity of the 

Republic o f China and approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Jo int  Venture.  (2) The Hong Kong Company and Fujian 

Petrochemical Co.,  Ltd. ,  in accordance with the laws and 

regulat ions of the People’s Republic o f China, have established a 

company  (hereinafter referred to  as Gulei Company) in Gule i 

Park, Zhangzhou, Fujian Province to  conduct  the business for the 

purpose of the Jo int  Venture and have acquired 50% of the shares 

issued by Gulei Company as the bas is for the jo int  venture 

investment .  However,  after the signing of the or igina l jo int  

venture contract,  the total amount  of the Jo int  Venture ’s 

investment  in Gule i Company will not be fulfilled by some of the 

counterpart  part ies o f the original contract  or commitment  due to  

the increase of t he capital demand o f the investment  plan.  

Therefore,  the Company and USI re -signed the jo int  venture 

contract with the counterparty of the original contract  or 

commitment  and CTCI Corporat ion on September 3 0, 2016, and 

the origina l jo int  venture contract was terminated at  the same 

t ime.  

  The Company and USI origina lly invested US $2,171 

thousand (approximately NT $65,202 thousand) and US $3,131 

thousand (approximately NT $94,221 thousand) respect ively to  

form a jo int  venture,  Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  ( included as 

investment  at  equity),  to  invest  in the Jo int  Venture through the 

Third Region.  

  As of December 31, 2018, the Company and USI invested US 

$103,240 thousand (approximately NT $3,190,905 thousand) a nd 

US $176,268 thousand (approximately NT $5,442,336 thousand)  

in Ever Conquest  Global Ltd.  (an equity investment).  And through 
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the company to increase the capital o f the Jo int  Venture,  which 

re- invested in t he Hong Kong Company in January 2017, July and 

August  2018, respect ively totaling US$ 343,977 thousand, and 

re- invested in Gulei Company totaling RMB 2,304,800 thousand 

(about  US$ 335,901 thousand) in Apr il 2017, August  and 

November 2018, respect ively.  The Jo int  Venture was invested 

through Third Region.  

  In addit ion, the Company and USI have increased their  

investment  in Ever Conquest  Global Limit ed of US $40,920 

thousand (approximately NT $1,280,719 thousand) and US 

$70,402 thousand (approximately NT $2,203,644 thousand) in 

May and August  2019 respect ively.  

  The Company has increased its investment  in Ever Conquest  

Global Limited in March and December 2020 to US $18,832 

thousand (approximately NT$570,606 thousand) and US $7,483 

thousand (approximately NT$213,358 thousand) respect ively in  

March and December 2020.  

  As of December 31, 2020, the Company and USI have 

invested US$ 170,475 thousand (approximately NT $5,255,588 

thousand) and US$ 246,670 thousand (approximately NT 

$7,645,980 thousand) respect ively in t he Ever Conquest  Globa l 

Limited, and t ransferred the addit ional capital o f US$ 417,145 

thousand to the Jo int  Venture through the company.  The Jo int  

Venture invested US$63,855 thousand and $63,855 thousand to the 

Hong Kong Company in June 2019 and August  2019 respect ively,  

and invested RMB 2,352,400 thousand (approximately $338,418 

thousand) to Gulei Company in June 2019,  August  2019, Apr il and 

December 2020, respect ively.  

  To supplement  the working capital of Gulei Company, the 

Jo int  Venture entered into a Joint  Venture Agreement  with DOR 

PO Investment  Company Limit ed (hereina fter referred to  as DOR 

PO Company) of Hong Kong on June 5,  2019 to jo int ly invest  in 

the Hong Kong Company. In accordance with the provis ions o f the 

Jo int  Venture Agreement ,  DOR PO Company will contribute US 
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$109,215 thousand to part ic ipate in the capital increase o f Hong 

Kong Company. As of December 31, 2020, DOR PO Company has 

contr ibuted US $99,108 thousand, account ing for approximate ly 

14.7% of the equity o f Hong Kong Company.  

 2). In order to  improve the efficiency o f asset  management ,  the 

Company provides 10 listed propertys fo r investment  located in 

subsec. 3,  Yanji St . ,  Songshan dist . ,  Taipei City 105049, Taiwan 

(R.O.C.) .  In cooperat ion with the neighbor ing areas,  the has 

part icipated in the urban renewal plan o f Huaku Development  Co.,  

Ltd.  (hereinaft er referred to  as Huaku Development) by means o f 

r ight  change, and has signed the Urban Renewal Development  

Contract ,  and has received a performance bond o f NT$6,400 

thousand from the builder.  The plan has been approved by t he 

Taipei Municipal Government  on November 30, 2017. Besides,  in 

order to  ensure the smooth development  o f the urban renewal plan,  

the Company and Huaku Development  signed a Property Trust  

Contract  with the Trust  Department  of Yushan Bank in 2017, and 

jo int ly entrusted the Trust  Department  of Yushan Bank to manage,  

divide,  merge and t ransfer the property r ights o f the construct ion 

base and the buildings on the ground dur ing the durat ion of the 

t rust  relat ionship,  By 2020, we have completed the check - in.  As o f 

December 31, 2020, the deliver y o f the vacant  spot  has been 

completed.  

 (3) Major Cont ingencies  

  Regarding the gas explosion o f the propylene pipeline o f Lee 

Chang Yung Chemical Industry Corporat ion (hereina fter referred to as 

Lee Chang Yung Chemical) on the night  of July 31, 2014 operated by 

the invested company, China General Terminal & Distr ibut ion 

Corporat ion (hereinafter referred to  as CGTD), which was entrusted by  

the Company with the equit y method, the second t r ial o f the cr imina l 

part  of the gas explosion case was pronounced on Apr il 24, 2020, and 

all three employees of CGTD were acquit ted.  

  CGTD entered into an agreement  with the Kaohsiung Municipa l 

Government  on February 12, 2015 to provide the Kaohsiung Municipa l 
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Government  with the pledge of a bank cert ificate of deposit  o f 

NT$227,458 thousand ( including interest ) as secur ity against  losses 

incurred in the event  of an gas exp losion. The Kaohsiung Municipa l 

Government  has also filed civil lawsuit s against  CGTD, Lee Chang 

Yung Chemical and CPC Corporat ion.  Moreover,  Taiwan Power  

Company applied to the court for sequestrat ion of CGT D’s property on 

August  27 and November 26, 2015 respect ive ly,  and CGTD has 

deposited cash o f NT$99,207 thousand to the court  to  avo id 

sequestrat ion.  Taiwan Water Corporat ion also applied to the court for  

false seizure o f CGTD’s property on February 3 and March 2,  2017 

respect ively.  As o f February 26, 2021, the value of the property seized 

of CGTD is approximately NT$ 9,581 thousand.  

  In view o f the case o f gas explosio n vict ims, CGTD and Lee Chang 

Yung Chemical with t he Kaohsiung Municipal Government  signed a 

t ripart ite agreement  on July 17, 2015, it  is agreed that  all the heirs o f 

the 32 vict ims and those who have the right  to claim (hereinafter  

referred to as “the family members of the vict ims”) shall negot iat e 

compensat ion. Each family member of the vict im was compensated 

with NT $12,000 thousand, and the total set t lement  was NT $384 ,000 

thousand. The set t lement  money will be paid in advance by Lee Chang 

Yung Chemical,  and Lee Chang Yung Chemical will negot iate and sign 

a set t lement  agreement  with the families of the vict ims o f the gas 

explosion incident  on behalf o f the three part ies.  

  For the ser iously injured, CGTD and Lee Chang Yung Chemica l 

signed a t ripart ite agreement  with the Kaohsiung Municipa l 

Government  on October 25, 2017, agreeing to negot iate compensat ion 

for the 65 ser iously injured persons first .  The set t lement  will be paid in 

advance by CGTD and the Kaohsiung Municipal Government ; In 

addit ion, on behalf o f the three part ies,  CGTD negot iated with the 

ser iously injured in the gas explosion incident  and signed a 

reconciliat ion contract  with 64 o f them.  

  As of February 26, 2021, the injured, vict ims or their relat ives o f 

the Kaohs iung gas explosion incident  have filed civil ( inc luding 

cr imina l incidental civil)  lawsuits against  CGTD, Lee Chang Yung 
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Chemical and CPC Corporat ion for compensat ion; CGTD has reached a 

set t lement  of NT$ 4,519 thousand for the origina l claim o f NT$ 46,677 

thousand based on the considerat ion of mit igat ing lit igat ion costs.  The 

total amount  of the remaining cla ims in the lit igat ion and the 

set t lement  of the vict ims and ser ious ly injured as descr ibed in the 

preceding paragraph is approximately NT$3,856,447 thousand.  The 

first  instance verdict  of some o f these civil cases ( indemnity amount  o f 

NT$1,341,128 thousand) of have been convicted since June 22, 2018 

and most  cases are with reference to the cr imina l courts of fir st  

instance verdict ,  determined that  the negligence liabilit y rat io  o f 

Kaohsiung Municipal Government ,  Lee Chang Yung Chemical and 

CGTD was 4:3:3,  and that  CGTD, Lee Chang Yung Chemical and other  

defendants should pay compensat ion o f about  NT$401,979 thousand (o f 

which NT$6,194 thousand was exempted from liabilit y by the c ourt).  

At  present ,  CGTD has filed an appeal for the adjudicated but  unset t led 

civil cases and proceeded with the second instance procedure 

successive ly.  CGTD signed a claim agreement  with an insurance 

company, according to  the negligence liabilit y rat io  de termined by the 

judgment  of first  instance, it  est imated the set t lement  amount  o f 

vict ims and ser iously injured, the compensat ion amount  of civi l 

lit igat ion cases ( including the set t led cases),  and est imated amount  to  

be borne by itself aft er deduct ing the  upper limit  of insurance claim 

was NT$ 136,375 thousand, which had been included into the account .  

However,  the actual amount  of such set t lement  and compensat ion shal l 

not  be confirmed unt il t he proport ion o f liabilit y to  be shared by CGTD 

is determined in accordance with the civil act ion.  

30. Significant  informat ion on foreign currency assets and liabilit ies  

  The fo llowing informat ion is summarized and presented in terms o f 

foreign currencies other than the Company's funct ional currencies.  The 

exchange rate disclosed refers to the exchange rate converted from such 

foreign currencies to the funct ional currenc ies.  The informat ion on 

foreign currency financial assets and liabilit ies with significant  impact  is  

as fo llows:  
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Unit :  The foreign  currency/ carrying  amount is NT$ 1,000,  

except  the exchange ra te is NT$1 

December 31, 2020  

 

 Foreign 

currency 

 

Exchange rate 

 Functional 

currency 

 Carrying 

amount 

Financial assets           

Monetary items           

USD    $ 10,807  28.4800  (USD:NTD)    $ 307,795    $ 307,795 

RMB     87,272  4.3648  (RMB:NTD)     380,924     380,924 

JPY     5  0.2763  (JPY:NTD)     1     1 

            $ 688,720 

Non-monetary 
items 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Subsidiaries and 

associatess at 

equity 

          

USD     198,293  28.4800  (USD:NTD)     5,647,372    $ 5,647,372 

Financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monetary items           

USD    $ 3,805  28.4800  (USD:NTD)    $ 108,375    $ 108,375 

JPY     7,072  0.2763  (JPY:NTD)     1,954     1,954 

EUR     24  35.0200  (EUR:NTD)     847     847 

            $ 111,176 

Non-monetary 

items 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Derivatives           

  RMB     77,660  4.3648  (RMB:NTD)     3,912    $ 3,912 
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December 31, 2019  

 

 F o r e i g n 

c u r r e n c y 

 

E x c h a n g e  r a t e 

 F u n c t i o n a l 

c u r r e n c y 

 C a r r y i n g 

a m o u n t 

Financial assets           

Monetary items           

USD    $ 11,542   29.9800  (USD:NTD)    $ 346,016     $ 346,016  
RMB     85,806   4.2975  (RMB:NTD)     368,753      368,753  
JPY     5   0.2760  (JPY:NTD)     1      1 
            $ 714,770  
Non-monetary 

items 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subsidiaries and 

associatess at 

equity 

          

USD     163,110   29.9800  (USD:NTD)     4,890,051     $ 4,890,051 
Derivatives            

USD     1,730   29.9800  (USD:NTD)     677      677 
            $ 4,890,728  
Financial 

liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monetary items           

USD     3,459   29.9800  (USD:NTD)     103,707     $ 103,707  
JPY     188   0.2760  (JPY:NTD)     52      52  
            $ 103,759  
Non-monetary 

items 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Derivatives            

  RMB     72,000   4.2975  (RMB:NTD)     583     $ 583 
 

  The foreign currency profit  and loss (realized and unrealized) of the 

Company in 2020 and as o f December  31, 2019 was of net  loss o f 

NT$13,066 thousand and NT$12,373 thousand. Due to the var iety o f 

foreign currency t ransact ions,  it  is not  possible to  disc lose the exchange 

gains and losses according to the foreign currency o f each significant  

impact .  

31.  Disclosure o f Notes 

 (1) Informat ion on Major Transact ions :  

 1). lend funds to  others.  (no ne)  

 2). Endorse a guarantee for another.  (no ne)  

 3). Marketable secur it ies held at  the end of t he per iod (excluding 

investment  in subsidiar ies,  associatess and equity o f jo int  

ventures).  (Attachment  1)  

 4). The accumulat ive purchase or sale o f the same secur it ies amount s 

to NT $300 million or more than 20% of the paid -up capit al.  

(At tachment  2)  
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 5). The amount  of property acquired is NT $300 million or more than 

20% of the paid-up capit al.  (none) 

 6). The amount  of disposing o f property amounts NT $300 million or  

more than 20% of the paid-up capital.  (none) 

 7). The amount  of purchase and sale with related part ies amounts to  

NT $100 million or more than 20% of the paid -up capita l.  

(At tachment  3)  

 8). The amount  receivable from the related part ies is  NT $100 millio n 

or more than 20% of the paid-up capit al.  (At tachment  4)  

 9). Trading in der ivat ives: Note 7.  

 (2) Informat ion of Reinvestment  Business.  (Attachment  5) 

 (3) Informat ion on Investment  in Mainland  

 1). Name o f the invested company in mainland China, main business 

items, paid- in capital,  investment  method, outward and inward 

remit tance of funds,  shareho lding rat io ,  profit  and loss fro m 

investment ,  carrying va lue of investment as of closing per iod,  

repatr iated profit  and loss from investment ,  and investment  limit  

in mainland China. (Attachment  6)  

 2). The fo llowing major t ransact ions,  pr ice,  payment  terms,  

unrealized profit  and loss,  direct ly or indirect ly with the invested 

company in the mainland through the third region: (Attachment  7)  

①  The amount  and percentage o f purchase and the closing  

   balance and percentage o f related accounts payable.  

②  The amount  and percentage of sales and the closing balance 

   and percentage o f related rece ivables.  

③  The amount  of property t ransact ions and the amount  o f pro fit s  

   and losses ar ising therefrom.  

④  Closing balance o f the guarant y or collateral for the   

   endorsement  of the bill and the purpose thereof.  

⑤  Maximum balance of financ ing, closing balance, interest  rate 

   range and total amount  of current  interest .  

⑥  Other t ransact ions that  have a significant  impact  on the  

   current  profit  and loss or financia l posit ion, such as the  

   provision or receipt  of services.  
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 (4) Informat ion on major shareho lders: name, amount  and proport ion o f 

shareho lders with shareho lding rat io  of more than 5%.  (Attachment  8) 

  Except  for the disclosures  in Attachment  1 to  8,  there are no other  

major t ransact ion mat ters,  reinvestment  undertakings and informat ion 

on investment  in mainland that  should be disclosed.  

32. Informat ion on Departments  

    In accordance with the Regulat ions Governing the Preparat ion o f 

Financia l Reports by Secur it ies Issuers,  the company may be exempted 

from the preparat ion of the departmental informat ion specified in the 

Internat ional Financia l Report ing Standards (IFRSs) No. 8.  
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD 

December 31, 2020  

Attachment  1  Unit : NT $1,000 unless otherwise indicated  

 

Ho ld ing  Co mpany Marketable Secur it ie s and Names 

The relationship with the 

I s s u e r  o f  M a r k e t a b le 

S e c u r i t i e s 

Financial Statement Account  

End of the period 

Note Number of Shares / 

Units 

Carrying 

Amount 

Shareholding 

Ratio (%) 
Fair Value 

 Ordinary shares        

APC Harbinger Venture Capital Corp.  None  Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income-non-current 

   2,377    $ 18  1.20%   $ 18   

 Riselink Venture Capital Corp. " "    2,632     318  1.67%    318   

 KHL IB Venture Capital Co., Ltd. " "    12,044,707     275,462  11.90%    275,462   

 USI Corporation Ultimate parent company "    101,355,673     2,290,638  8.53%    2,290,638   

 CTCI Corporation None  "    14,446,107     551,842  1.89%    551,842   

 AU Optronic Corporation " "    9,618,516     134,659  0.10%    134,659   

 Wafer Works Corporation " Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income-current 

   2,017,946     86,368  0.39%    86,368   

 Unimicron Technology Corporation 

 

" Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss-current 

   300,000     26,220  0.02%    26,220   

 Evergreen Marine Corp. " "    1,693,251     68,915  0.04%    68,915   

 Quanta Computer Inc. " "    200,000     16,180  0.01%    16,180   

 United Microelectronics Corporation. " "    450,000     21,218  0.00%    21,218   

 G.M.I. Technology Inc. " "    1,515,800     21,752  0.19%    21,752   

 Taiwan Cement Corp. " "    500,000     21,600  0.01%    21,600   

 Benefit securities         

 Cathay No. 1 Property Investment 

Trust Fund 

" "    3,281,000     61,388  -    61,388   

 Beneficiary certificates        

 Mega Diamond Money Market Fund " "    5,887,835     74,481  -    74,481   

 Capital Investment Trust Corporation 

Stable Money Market Fund 

" "    2,152,072     35,004  -    35,004   

 Jih Sun Money Market Fund " "    16,818,904     251,443  -    251,443   

 Prudential Financial Money Market 

Fund 

" "    3,137,157     50,053  -    50,053   

 

(Cont inued) 
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(Cont inued) 

 

Ho ld ing  Co mpany Marketable Secur it ie s and Names 

The relationship with the 

I s s u e r  o f  M a r k e t a b le 

S e c u r i t i e s 

Financial Statement Account  

End of the period 

Note Number of Shares / 

Units 

Carrying 

Amount 

Shareholding 

Ratio (%) 
Fair Value 

 Taishin 1699 Money Market Fund None  Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss-current 

   12,021,036    $ 164,038  -   $ 164,038   

 CTBC Hwa Win Money Market Fund " "    5,672,048     63,002  -    63,002   

 FSITC Taiwan Money Market " "    3,564,088     55,006  -    55,006   

 Hua Nan Kirin Money Market Fund " "    6,381,916     77,000  -    77,000   

APC (BVI) Shares        

 Budworth Investment Ltd. - ordinary 

shares 

" Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income - non-current 

   40,467     10  4.45%    10   

 Silicon Technology Investment 

(Cayman) Corp. -preference shares 

" "    1,139,776     57,117  2.19%    57,117   

 NeuroSky, Inc. - series D preference 

shares 

" "    2,397,364     -  0.37%    -  (Note 1) 

 Solargiga Energy Holdings Ltd. " "    15,863,333     17,480  0.49%    17,480   

 Teratech Corp. - ordinary shares " "    112,000     -  0.67%    -  (Note 1) 

 TGF Linux Communication, Inc. - 

preference shares 

" Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss- 

non-current 

   300,000     -  -    -  (Note 1) 

 Sohoware, Inc. - preference shares " "    450,000     -  -    -  (Note 1) 

 Boldworks, Inc. - preference shares " "    689,266     -  -    -  (Note 1) 

APC Investment 

Corporation 

Ordinary shares       (Note 1) 

 USI Corporation Ultimate parent company Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss- 

current 

   44,808     1,013  -    1,013   

 Taiwan Cement Corp. None  "    300,000     12,960  0.01%    12,960   

 United Microelectronics Corporation. " "    150,000     7,073  0.00%    7,073   

 Evergreen Marine Corp. " "    564,416     22,972  0.01%    22,972   

 Quanta Computer Inc. " "    100,000     8,090  0.00%    8,090   

 Unimicron Technology Corporation " "    150,000     13,110  0.01%    13,110   

 G.M.I. Technology Inc. " "    492,900     7,073  0.39%    7,073   

 Beneficiary securities        

 Cathay Taiwan Money Market Fund None  Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss- 

current 

   499,525     6,261  -    6,261   

         

         

         

Note 1: Due to the investment  losses recognized over the past  years,  the Company evaluated the fair value o f long-term equity inst ruments as 0.  

Note 2: Please refer to  Attachment  5 and 6 for detailed informat ion on subsidiar ies and associatess.  
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AS IA POLYMER CORP ORATION  

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISP OSED OF AT COSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$ 300 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID -IN CAP ITAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2020  

At tachment  2  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise 

 

C o m p a n y  
P u r c h a s e / S a l e  

Typ e  a n d  Na me  o f 
Marketable Securities 

Financial Statement 
A c c o u n t 

Trading Partner Rela t ionship  

Beginning of the Period Purchase Sale The end of the Period (Note) 

Number of Share Amount Number of Share Amount Number of Share Sale Price Book Cost 
Dispose of 
Interests 

Number of Share Amount 

APC Corporation Shares              
  Ever Conquest Global 

Limited., 
Investment at equity － Investmee at 

equity 
   144,160,000   $ 4,265,335    26,315,000   $ 783,964    -   $ -   $ -   $ -    170,475,000   $ 5,066,945 

(Note 1) 
               
 Fund              
 Taishin 1699 Money 

Market Fund 
Financial assets at 

fair value through 
profit and 

loss-current 

－ －    18,356,835    248,000    35,947,285    490,000    42,283,084    576,189    574,000    2,189    12,021,036    164,038 
(Note 2) 

 Taishin Ta-Chong Money 
Market Fund 

" － －    3,832,822    54,400    21,475,665    307,000    25,308,487    361,769    361,400    369    -    - 
 

 CTBC Hwa Win Money 

Market Fund 

" － －    14,112,664    155,000    32,094,158    356,000    40,534,774    449,485    448,000    1,485    5,672,048    63,002 

(Note 3) 
 FSITC Money Market " － －    957,942    171,000    2,239,281    402,000    3,197,223    573,842    573,000    842    -    - 

 FSITC Taiwan Money 
Market 

" － －    12,624,735    193,000    12,026,785    185,300    21,087,432    324,749    323,300    1,449    3,564,088    55,006 
(Note 4) 

               
               

 

Note  1 : book cos t  includes  or igina l acqui s it ion cos t ,  profi t  and loss  from inves t ment recogni zed a t  equi ty,  exchange  ra te con vers ion and ne t change  adjustment.  

Note  2 : the  amount  at  the  end of the  per iod of the  account  i s  NT$164,038 thousand, which is  the  balance  be tween inves tment cos t  of 164,000 thousand and adjus tment amount  evalua t ed of NT$38 thousand.  

Note  3 : the  amount  at  the  end of the  per iod of the  account  i s  NT$63,002 thousand, which i s the  balance  be tween inves tment cos t  of 63,000 thousand and adjustment  amount  evaluated of NT$2 thousand.  

Note  4 : the  amount  at  the  end of the  p er iod of the  account  i s  NT$55,006 thousand, which i s the  balance  be tween inves tment cos t  of 55,000 thousand and adjustment  am ount  evaluated of NT$6 thousand.  
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AS IA POLYMER CORP ORATION  

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEA ST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID -IN CAPITAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2020  

Attachment  3 In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise 

 

Buyer/Seller Related  Parties Relationship 

Transaction Details 
Circumstances and Reasons for Differences 

between Trading Terms and General Trading 
Bills and Accounts Receivable (Payable) 

Purchase (Sale) 

of Goods 
Amount 

Proportion of total 

Purchase (Sales) 
Credit Period Unit Price Credit Period Balance 

Ratio of Total Bills 
and Accounts 

Receivable 

(Payable) 

Asia Polymer Corporation 

(APC) 

USI Corporation Ultimate parent 

company 

Sales of goods  ( $ 662,692 )  (  12.01% ) 60 days No material difference No material difference Accounts 

receivable-related 

parties 

  $ 189,988     25.16% 

USI Trading (Shanghai) Co., 

Ltd. 

USI Corporation Ultimate parent 

company 

Purchase of 

goods 

   119,428     4.01% 30 days No material difference No material difference Accounts 

payable-related 

parties 

 (  33,203 )  (  13.07% ) 
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

RECEIVABLES FROM RE LATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID -IN CAPITAL 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Attachment  4  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise 

 

Companies with Accounts 

Receivable 
Related Parties Relationship 

Balance of Receivables from Related 

Parties 

Turnover 

Rate 

Overdue Receivables from Related 

Parties 

Amount Recovered 

after Due Date of 

Receivables from 

Related Parties 

(Note 2) 

Allowance 

for Bad Debts 
Amount Disposal Mode 

Asia Polymer Corporation (APC) USI Corporation Ultimate parent 

company 

Accounts 

receivable-related 

parties 

  $ 189,988  3.91   $ -  -   $ 189,988  Note 1 

   Other receivables-related 

parties 

   58      -  -    58  Note 1 

 

Note 1: no allowance for bad debts is required on assessment .  

Note 2: post  period refers to  the per iod from January 1 to  March 5,  2021.  
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION  

INFORMATION ON INVESTEES,  LOCATION,  ETC. 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2020  

Attachment  5 In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise 
 

Name of Investor N a m e  o f  I n v e s t e e L o c a t i o n  M a i n  B u s i n e s s 

O r i g i n a l  I n v e s t m e n t  A m o u n t C l o s i n g  B a l a n c e 
Current Profit  (Loss) 

f r o m  I n v e s t e e 

Current Investment 
Pr ofi t  and  Loss 

R e c o g n i z e d   

N o t e  Closing balance of 

T h i s  Y e a r 

Closing Balance of 

L a s t  Y e a r 

N u m b e r  o f 

S h a r e 
R a t i o  C a r r yi n g  A m oun t 

Asia Polymer 

Corporation 

(APC) 

APC (BVI) BVI Reinvestment business   $ 392,306   $ 392,306    11,342,594 100.00%   $ 517,012   $ 15,182   $ 15,182 Subsidiary (Note 1) 

 ( US$ 13,774,806 )  ( US$   13,774,806)      

 APC Investment Co., Ltd. Taipei City Investment business    200,000    200,000    20,000,000 100.00%    132,491    33,542    33,542 Subsidiary (Note 1) 

 USI International Corp. BVI Reinvestment business    59,808    79,744    2,100,000 70.00%    63,415    5,387    3,771 Subsidiary (Note 1) 

  ( US$ 2,100,000 )  ( US$ 2,800,000 )      

 China General Plastics 

Corporation (CGPC) 

Taipei City Production and sales of 

plastic cloth, plastic 

skin, plastic pipe, plastic 

particles, plastic powder, 

special shaped extruded 
building materials, alkali 

chlorine products and 

other related products 

   247,412    247,412    44,653,510 8.07%    782,997    1,634,185    131,866 Investee at equity 

 China General Terminal & 

Distribution Corporation  

Taipei City Storage and transportation 

of petrochemical raw 

materials 

   41,082    41,082    19,918,184 33.33%    315,711    69,385    23,128 Investee at equity 

 Swanson Plastics Corporation  Taipei City Production and sales of 

telescopic film and 

industrial multilayer 

packaging film 

   75,242    75,242    12,266,779 7.95%    206,857    247,423    19,669 Investee at equity 

 Acme Electronics Corporation  Taipei City Production and sales of 
manganese zinc, soft 

ferrite, magnetic 

powder, magnetic core 

   61,348    61,348    6,056,623 3.31%    42,939    33,393    1,105 Investee at equity 

 Taiwan United Venture Capital 

Corp. (TUVC) 

Taipei City Investment in high-tech 

business 

   52,791    52,791    3,913,533 8.33%    21,472  (  4,172 )  (  347 ) Investee at equity 

 Thintec Materials Corporation 

(TMC) 

Taipei City Manufacturing of reinforce 

plastic products  

   36,250    36,250    - -    -    15    4  Investee at equity 

 USI Optronics Corporation Taipei City Production and sales of 

sapphire single crystal 

   59,725    59,725    5,972,464 9.20%    12,579  (  62,320 )  (  5,735 ) Investee at equity 

 Ever Conquest Global Ltd. BVI Reinvestment business    4,855,128    4,105,677    170,475,000 40.87%    5,066,945  (  113,719 )  (  44,058 ) Investee at equity 

 ( US$ 170,475,000 )  ( US$ 144,160,000 )      

APC (BVI) ACME Electronics (Cayman) 
Corp. 

British 
Cayman 

Islands 

Reinvestment business    149,375    149,375    8,316,450 16.64%    200,825    9,485     - APC (BVI)-investee at 
equity  ( US$ 5,244,903 )  ( US$ 5,244,903 )      

 USI International Corp. BVI Reinvestment business    25,632    34,176    900,000 30.00%    27,178    5,387    - APC (BVI)-investee at 

equity (Note 1)  ( US$ 900,000 )  ( US$ 1,200,000 )      

APC Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

Acme Electronics Corporation  Taipei City Production and sales of 

manganese zinc, soft 

ferrite, magnetic 

powder, magnetic core 

   14,889    14,889    1,884,548 1.03%    13,361    33,393    - APC Investment Co., 

Ltd. -investee at 

equity 

 SWANSON TECHNOLOGIES 

CORPORATION 

Taipei City Production and sales of 

EVA encapsulation film 

   30,000    30,000    3,000,000 15.00%  (  16,165 )  (  14,109 )    - APC Investment Co., 

Ltd. -investee at 

equity 
Ever Conquest 

Global Ltd. 

Ever Victory Global Ltd. BVI Reinvestment business    11,880,290    11,130,838    417,145,000 67.40%    12,398,596  (  153,485 )    - Ever Conquest Global 

Ltd.-investee at equity  (US$   417,145,000 )  ( US$  390,830,000)    (US$   435,344,000 ) (US $     5,198,000)  

Ever Victory 

Global Ltd. 

Dynamic Ever Investments Ltd. HK Reinvestment business    16,770,448    13,906,385    588,850,000 85.00%    17,523,490  (  175,395 )    - Ever Victory Global 

Ltd.-investee at equity  ( US$ 588,850,000 )  ( US$ 488,286,000 )    ( US$ 615,291,000 )  (US$     5,942,000)  

Not e 1:  I t  has been  wr i t ten off in  the preparat ion of consol idated financia l sta tements.



- 97 - 

ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION   

IN F OR M AT IO N O N IN VE S T M E NT S IN  M A IN L AN D C H IN A  

FOR  T HE  Y E AR  E N DE D DE C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 2 0  

At t a c h me nt  6  In  T h ou s a nd s o f  Ne w Ta i wa n D ol l a r s ,  U nl e s s St a t e d  Ot he r wi s e  

 

Name of Investee in Mainland Main Business Scope Paid-in Capital (Note 3) 
Investment Mode 

(Note 1) 

Accumulated Investment 

Amount Remitted from 

Taiwan at the Beginning of 

the Current Period 

Amount of Investment Remitted or Recovered in the 

Current Period 
Accumulated Investment 

Amount Remitted from 

Taiwan at the End of the 

Current Period 

Current Profit and Loss of 

the Investee (Note 3) 

Shareholding 

Ratio of Direct 

or Indirect 

Investment of 

the Company 

Investment (Loss) Profit 

Recognized in the Current 

Period (Note 3) 

Carrying Amount of 

Investment at the End of 

the Period (Note 4) 

Investment Income 

Remitted by the End of the 

Current Period Outflow Inflow 

ACME Electronics (Kunshan) 

Co., Ltd. 

Manufacturing and sales of 

Mn Zn ferrite core 

  $ 875,048  (2)   $ 118,971    $ -    $ -    $ 118,971  B  16.64%   $ 1,220    $ 130,641    $ -  

 ( US$ 30,725,000 ) ACME Electronics 

(Cayman) Corp. 

 ( US$ 4,177,369 )    (US$ 4,177,369 )   $ 7,332      

USI Trading (Shanghai) Co., 

Ltd. 

Sales of chemical products 

and equipment, etc 

   71,200  (2)    86,454     -     -     86,454  B 100.00%    11,497     120,346     -  

 (US$ 2,500,000 ) APC (BVI)  ( US$ 3,035,601 )    ( US$ 3,035,601 )    11,497      

Fujian Gulei Petrochemical 

Co., Ltd 

Manufacturing of crude oil 

processing and 

petroleum products, etc 

   40,655,493  (2)    3,789,932     706,572      4,496,504  A 11.71%  (  40,514 )    4,723,802     -  

 ( RMB$  9,314,400,000) Dynamic Ever 

Investments Ltd.,

（Note2） 

 ( US$ 133,073,466 )  ( US$ 24,809,406 )    -   ( US$ 157,882,871 )  (  330,217 )             

 

Accumulated Investment Amount Remitted from Taiwan to the 

Mainland at the End of Current Period 

Investment Amount Approved by Investment Commission, 

MOEA 

Investment Quota in Mainland China as Stipulated by the 

Investment Commission, MOEA 

$4,839,207（Note 5） $6,374,838 $ - 

（US$169,915,978） （US$ 223,835,608） (Note 6） 

 

N ot e  1 :  T he  i n ve st me nt  mod e s  c a n  be  d i v i d e d  i n t o  t he  fo l l o wi n g  t h re e  t y pe s ,  a nd  t he  c a t e go r i e s c a n  be  ma rk e d :  

 (1 )  Di re c t  i nve s t me nt  i n  ma i n l a nd  C hi na .  

 (2 )  R e i nve s t  i n  ma i n l a nd  C hi na  t h r o u g h  a  t h i rd  r e g i o n  c o mpa n y ( p l e a se  s pe c i fy  t he  i nv e st e e  i n  t he  t h i rd  r e g i o n) .  

 (3 )  Ot he r  mod e s.  

N ot e :  t h r ou g h  t he  t h i rd  r e g i o n  c o mpa n y of  E ve r  C on q ue st  Gl o ba l  L t d .  wi t h  s ha re h ol d i ng  ra t i o  o f  4 0 . 8 7 % ,  r e - i n ve st e d  i n  E v e r  Vi c t o r y  Gl o ba l  L t d .  Wi t h  a  s ha re h ol d i n g  ra t i o  o f  6 7 . 4 0 %  a nd  t he n  re - i nve s t e d  i n  Dy na mi c  E ve r  In ve st me nt  L t d . ,  wi t h  a  s ha re hol d i ng  ra t i o  o f  

8 5 %  a nd  i nd i re c t l y  i n ve st e d  i n  F uj i a n  G ul e i  P e t r oc he mi c a l  C o . ,  L t d . ,  wi t h  a  s ha re h ol d i n g  ra t i o  o f  5 0 % .  

N ot e  3 :  In  t he  c o l u mn  o f  Current Profit and Loss of the Investee: 

 (1 )  I f  i t  i s  i n  p re pa ra t i o n  a nd  t he re  i s  n o  p ro f i t  o r  l o s s o n  i n ve st me nt ,  i t  s ha l l  be  i nd i c a t e d .  

 (2 )  T he  ba si s  f o r  t he  r e c o g ni t i o n  of  i n ve st me nt  p r o f i t  a nd  l o s s i s  d i v i d e d  i n t o  t he  f o l l o wi n g  t h re e  c a t e g or i e s,  wh i c h  s h a l l  be  i n d i c a t e d .  

A .  F i na nc i a l  s t a t e me nt s a ud i t e d  b y  a n  In t e rna t i o na l  A c c o u nt i n g  F i r m i n  pa r t ne r s h i p  wi t h  a n  a c c o u nt i n g  f i r m  o f  t h e  R e p u bl i c  o f  C h i na .  

B .  F i na nc i a l  s t a t e me nt s a ud i t e d  b y  t he  Ta i wa n pa re n t  c o mp a n y’s  C PA.  

C .  Ot he r s.  

N ot e  4 :  i t  i s  c on ve r t e d  a t  t he  e xc ha n ge  ra t e  o f  De c e mbe r  3 1 ,  2 0 2 0 .  

N ot e  5 :  T he  C o mp a n y i n ve st s  i n  S i l i c on  Te c hn ol o gy  In v e st me nt  (C a y ma n )  C or p .  (ST IC )  a nd  Sol a rg i ga  E ne rgy  H ol d i n g s L t d .  t h r o ug h  AP C  (B V I)  H o l d i n g  C o.  L t d .  t o  i nd i re c t l y  i n ve st  i n  c o mp a ni e s i n  M a i n l a nd  C hi na .  

N ot e  6：Ac c ord i n g  t o  t he  In ve st me nt  C o mmi s si o n ,  M OE A’ s J i ng  S ho u  G on g Z i  N o.  1 0 8 0 0 2 6 2 94 0  i s sue d  o n  Fe br ua r y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 0 ,  t he  C o mpa n y i s  a n  e n t e rp r i se  t ha t  ha s  o b t a i ne d  t he  c e r t i f i c a t i on  d oc u me nt  i s s ue d  b y  t he  i nd u st r i a l  b ure a u  o f  t he  M i ni st r y  of  e c o n o mi c  a ffa i r s  

t ha t  c o n fo r ms  t o  t he  b u si ne s s s c o pe  o f  t he  he a d qua r t e r s ,  s o  t he re  i s  n o  i n ve st me nt  l i mi t .  
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ASIA POLYMER CORPORATION 

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH INVESTEE COMPANIES IN MAINLAND CHINA, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THROUGH A T HIRD PARTY, AND THEIR PRICES, 

PAYMENT TERMS, AND UNREALIZED GAINS OR LOSSES  

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020  

Attachment  7  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise 

 

Investee  in Mainland China 
Transaction 

Account 
Amount Percentage Price 

Transaction Terms 
Bills and Accounts Receivable 

(Payable) 
Unrealized Profit 

and Loss 
Note 

Payment Terms 

Compared with 

General 

Transaction 

Amount Percentage 

USI Trading (Shanghai) Co., 

Ltd. 

Sales of goods   $ 63,613     1.15% No material 

difference 

T/T 90 days No material 

difference 

  $ 12,462     1.65%   $ -  － 
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  and Subsidiar ies  

Informat ion on Major Shareho lders  

December 31, 2020  

Attachment  8  

 

Name of Major Shareholders 
Shares 

Number of Shares Shareholding Ratio 

Union Polymer International Investment Corporation 210,044,924 36.08% 

 

Note:The informat ion of major shareho lders in this Attachment  refers to the infor mat ion calculated by Nordic CSD on the last  business day at  the end of the current quarter of 

which the total number o f common stocks and specia l stocks o f the Company held,  amount ing to  more than 5%, by the shareho lder  has been de livered without  phys ical 

regist rat ion ( inc luding t reasury shares).  The capital stock recorded in the conso lidated financial statements of the Company and the actual number of shares delivered without 

phys ical regist rat ion may be different  or discrepant  due to  the compilat ion and c alculat ion basis.  

 

https://www.apc.com.tw/
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§Schedules of Important Accounting Items§ 
 

I t e m s   C o d e / I n d e x e s 

Schedule o f Assets,  Liabilit ies and Equity    

  Schedule o f Cash and Cash Equivalents   Schedule 1  

  Schedule o f Financial Assets at  Fair Value 

through Profit  or Loss-Current  

 Schedule 2  

  Schedule o f Financial Assets at  Fair Value 

through Other Comprehensive Income-Current  

 Schedule 3  

  Schedule o f Accounts Receivable   Schedule 4  

  Schedule o f Inventory   Schedule 5  

  Schedule o f Changes in Financia l Assets at  Fair  

Value through Other Comprehensive 

Income-Non-current  

 Schedule 6  

  Schedule o f Changes in Investment  at Equity   Schedule 7  

  Schedule o f Changes in Property, Plant and Equipment  Note 13 

  Schedule o f Changes in Accumulated 

Depreciat ion o f Property,  Plant  and Equipment  

 Note 13 

  Schedule o f changes in investment  propert ies   Note 15 

  Schedule o f Changes in Accumulated 

Depreciat ion o f investment  propert ies  

 Note 15 

  Schedule o f Deferred Tax Assets   Note 24 

  Schedule o f Accounts Payable   Schedule 8  

  Schedule o f Other Payables   Note 18 

  Schedule o f Deferred Tax Liabilit ies   Note 24 

Schedule o f Pro fit  or Loss    

  Schedule o f Net  revenue   Schedule 9  

  Schedule o f Operat ing Cost   Schedule 10  

  Schedule o f product ion overheads   Schedule 11  

  Schedule o f Operat ing Expenses   Schedule 12  

  Summary of Employee’s Benefits, Depreciation and 

Amortization Expenses by Function Incurred for the Period 

 

 

 Note 23 and Schedule 

13 
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Cash and Cash Equiva lents  

December 31, 2020 

Schedule 1  In Thousands of New Taiwan 

Dollars,  Unless Stated Otherwise)  

 

I t e m s   S u m m a r y   A m o u n t  

Cash     

Cash on hand and 

petty cash 

     $ 179 

Check deposit       5,991 

Taiwan dollar 

current deposit 

      13,276 

Foreign currency 

current deposit 

 USD181,042.08, @28.48     5,156 

Foreign currency 

current deposit 

 RMB 13,937.39, @4.3648     61 

Foreign currency 

current deposit 

 JPY 4,814, @0.2763     1 

Foreign currency 

current deposit 

 EUR 150.32, @35.02     5 

Subtotal        24,669 

        

Cash equivalents     

Foreign currency 

time deposit 

 USD3,200,000, @28.48, annual 

interest rate, 0.10%, Due in 

January 2021 

    91,136 

Foreign currency 

time deposit 

 RMB 1,910,000, @4.3648, annual 

interest rate, 1.90%, Due in 

January 2021 

    8,337 

Taiwan dollar 

time deposit 

 annual interest rate, 

0.07%~0.49%, Due between 

March and June 2021 

    150,000 

        

      $ 274,142 
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Asia Polymer Corporation (APC)  

Schedule of Financial Assets a t Fair  Value through Profit  or  Loss-Current  

December 31, 2020  

Schedule 2  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars,  Unless Stated Otherwise  

 

      Fair Value (Note)   

Name of Financial Commodity  Number of Shares or 

Units 

 Acquisition Cost  Unit Price (NT$)  Total Amount  Note 

Current           

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss-non-derivative 

financial assets 

          

Stock of domestic listed (OTC) companies           

Quanta Computer Inc.  200,000    $ 14,742  80.90    $ 16,180   

Evergreen Marine Corp.  1,693,251     26,308  40.70     68,915   

UMC  450,000     13,764  47.15     21,218   

G.M.I. Technology Inc.  1,515,800     24,351  14.35     21,752   

Unimicron Technology Corporation  300,000     13,208  87.40     26,220   

Taiwan Cement Corp.  500,000     20,595  43.20     21,600   

       112,968       175,885   

Fund beneficiary certificate           

Mega Diamond Money Market Fund  5,887,835     74,300  12.65     74,481   

Capital Investment Trust Corporation Stable Money 

Market Fund 

 2,152,072     35,000  16.27     35,004   

Jih Sun Money Market Fund  16,818,904     249,600  14.95     251,443   

Prudential Financial Money Market Fund  3,137,157     50,000  15.95     50,053   

Taishin 1699 Money Market Fund  12,021,036     164,000  13.65     164,038   

CTBC Hwa Win Money Market Fund  5,672,048     63,000  11.11     63,002   

FSITC Taiwan Money Market  3,564,088     55,000  15.43     55,006   

Hua Nan Kirin Money Market Fund  6,381,916     77,000  12.07     77,000   

Cathay No. 1 Property Investment Trust Fund  3,281,000     33,160  18.71     61,388   

       801,060       831,415   

                 

Total      $ 914,028      $ 1,007,300   

 

Note: The market pr ice is calculated on the fol lowing basis:  

1.  Open-end funds are calculated according to the net asset value of the last trading day in D ecember 2020 of each fund.  

2.  Shares of  lis ted (OTC) companies and closed-end funds are calculated at the closing price of the last trading day in December 2020 on the centralized trading market or  Taipei Exchange.  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Financial Assets at  Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 

Income-Current  

December 31, 2020  

Schedule 3  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars,  

Unless Stated Otherwise  

 

      Fair Value (Note)   

Name of Financial 

Commodity  

Number of 

Share  

Acquisition 

Cost  

Unit Price 

(NT$)  

Total 

Amount  Note 
Wafer Works Corporation  2,017,946    $ 37,124  42.80    $ 86,368   

                 

 

Note: the fair value is calculated according to the closing price of the last trading day of the Taiwan 

Exchange in December 2020.
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Accounts Receivable  

December 31, 2020  

Schedule 4  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars  

 

N a m e  o f  C u s t o m e r  A m o u n t  

Accounts receivable-non-related parties   

Customer A    $ 120,100 

Customer B     108,051 

Customer C     107,635 

Customer D     34,351 

Others (Note)     177,235 

Subtotal      547,372 

Less: allowance for bad debts   (  2,000 ) 

     545,372 

Accounts receivable-related parties   

Customer E     189,988 

Customer F     12,462 

Others (Note)     7,425 

Subtotal     209,875 

Net amount of receivables    $ 755,247 

 

Note: the amount of each customer does not exceed 5% of the total accounts receivable.
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Inventory 

December 31, 2020  

Schedule 5  In Thousands o f New Taiwan Dollars)  

 

  Amount   

Items  Cost  Market Price  Basis of Market 

Price 

Finished products    $ 158,254    $ 249,422  Net realization 

value 

             

Work in process     19,347     32,170  Net realization 

value 

             

Raw materials     82,790     83,675  Replacement cost 

             

Supplies      34,583     34,455  Replacement cost 

             

     294,974    $ 399,722   

             

Less: allowance for bad 

debts 

  (  128 )     

             

    $ 294,846     

 

Note: the net realization value of inventories recovered in 2020 is NT $408 thousand.
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Changes in Financial Assets at  Fair Value through Other Comprehensive  Income -Non-current  

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020  

Schedule 6  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars,  Unless Stated Otherwise  

 

  The beginning of the Year  Increase in the Current Year (Note 

1) 

 Decrease in the Current Year (Note 

1) 

 

The End of the Year 

 

 

Name  Number of share 

(share) 

 Fair Value  Number of share 

(share) 

 Amount  Number of share 

(share) 

 Amount  Number of 

Share (share) 

 Fair Value  Guarantee or 

Pledge 

USI Corporation    101,355,673    $ 1,403,776     -    $ 886,862     -    $ -    101,355,673    $ 2,290,638  None  

                               
AU Optronic Corporation     9,618,516     96,666     -     37,993     -     -     9,618,516     134,659  None  

                               

CTCI Corp.     14,446,107     550,397     -     1,445     -     -     14,446,107     551,842  None  

                               

Harbinger Venture Capital Corp.     2,377     66     -     -     -     48     2,377     18  None  

                               

Riselink Venture Capital Corp.     131,587     1,947     -     -     128,955     1,629     2,632     318  None  

                               

KHL IB Venture Capital Co., Ltd.     15,329,223     235,763     -     39,699     3,284,516     -     12,044,707     275,462  None  

                               

Total       $ 2,288,615      $ 965,999         $ 1,677         $ 3,252,937   

 

Note 1: the changes for the current  year is  because o f the changes and adjustment  for fair value and the capit al reduct ion an d refund of share proceeds handled by the investees.  
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Asia  Pol ym er  Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule of Changes in  Investmen t  a t Equi ty 

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020  

Schedule 7  In  Thousands of New Taiwan  Dol lar s,  Un less Sta ted Otherwise  

              Closing Balance         

  

Initial Balance 

 

Increase in the Current Year 

 

Decrease in the Current Year 

   Shareholdi

ng Ratio 

   Market value or Net Equity 

Value (Note 2)  

Guarantee 

or Pledge 

  

Name of Investees 

 Number of 

Shares (1,000 

shares) 

 

Amount 

 Number of 

Shares (1,000 

shares) 

 

Amount (Note 

3) 

 Number of 

Shares (1,000 

shares) 

 

Amount (Note 

3) 

 Number of 

Shares (1,000 

shares)  （％）  Amount 

 

Unit Price 

(NT$) 

 

Total Price    Note 

Listed (OTC) companies                           

China General Plastics 

Corporation (CGPC) 

    42,527    $ 668,500     2,126    $ 117,988     -    $ -     44,653  8.07    $ 786,488  25.45    $ 1,136,432  None   Note 1 

Acme Electronics Corporation 

(ACME) 

    6,057     46,875     -     1,099     -     -     6,057  3.31     47,974  18.90     114,470  "  Note 1 

          715,375          119,087          -            834,462       1,250,902     
                                          

Non-listed (OTC) companies                           

China General Terminal & 

Distribution Corporation  

    18,667     257,584     1,251     58,127     -     -     19,918  33.33     315,711       315,711  None   Note 1 

APC (BVI)     11,343     536,886     -     32,452     -     -     11,343  100.00     569,338       517,012  "  Note 1 

Taiwan United Venture Capital 

Corp. (TUVC) 

    3,913     20,142     -     1,330     -     -     3,913  8.33     21,472       21,472  "  Note 1 

Swanson Plastics Corporation      12,266     217,658     -     13,847     -     -     12,266  7.95     231,505       206,857  "  Note 1 

USI International Corp.     2,800     134,270     -     -     700     64,038     2,100  70.00     70,232       63,415  "  Note 1 

Thintec Materials Corporation 

(TMC) 

    1,825     4,399     -     -     1,825     4,399     -  -     -       -  "  Note 4 

APC Investment Co., Ltd.     20,000     96,923     -     37,134     -     -     20,000  100.00     134,057       132,491  "  Note 1 

Ever Conquest Global Ltd.     144,160     4,459,107     26,315     747,849     -     -     170,475  40.87     5,206,956       5,066,945  "  Note 1 

USI Optronics Corporation     5,972     18,313     -     -     -     5,734     5,972  9.20     12,579       12,579  "  Note 1 

                                          

          6,460,657       1,009,826          74,171         7,396,312       7,587,384     

                                          

Allowance for conversion 

adjustments 

    (  269,637 )       35,743       -       (  233,894 )       -     

                                          

         $ 6,191,020      $ 1,045,569         $ 74,171        $ 7,162,418      $ 7,587,384     

 

Not e 1:  I t  i s ca lculated according to  the financial  sta tements of the investee company as a t  the end of Decem ber  2020, wh ich  have been  audi ted by the CPA.  

Not e 2:  Market  pr ice r efer s to the closing pr ice a t  the end of Decem ber  2020;  The net  equi ty value is main ly calcula ted based  on  the finan cia l  sta temen ts of the investee company and the shareholding ra tio of the  

Company.  

Not e 3:  I t  includes investmen t  proceeds from addi t ional purchases,  profi ts and losses from invest men t  r ecogn ized through  the equi ty me thod,  accumulated conversion  adjustmen t s,  capi tal  r eserves ,  unreal ized profi t s  

and losses of financia l  commodit ies,  actuaria l profi ts and losses,  profi ts and losses from the disposal  of investmen t ,  and di vidends paid by the investee compan ies.  

Not e 4:  The Board of Director s of Th intec Mater ia ls  Corporat ion (TMC) resol ved on  Apri l 12, 2019 to proceed with l iquidat ion from May 25,  2019 (dissolut ion  date)  and completed l iquidat ion procedures on  July 22,  

2020.  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Accounts Payable  

December 31, 2020  

Schedule 8  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars  

 

N a m e  o f  M a n u f a c t u r e r  A m o u n t  

Accounts payable-non-related parties   

Supplier A    $ 158,958 

Others (Note)     79,405 

Subtotal     238,363 

      

Accounts payable-related parties   

Supplier B     12,387 

Supplier C     3,243 

Subtotal     15,630 

      

    $ 253,993 
 

Note: The amount  of each creditor does not  exceed 5% of the total accounts 

payable.  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Operat ing Incomes  

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020  

Schedule 9  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars,  

Unless Stated Otherwise  

 

Items   Quantity (kg)  

Unit Sales 

Price 

(NT$)  Amount  
Revenue       

LDPE       
Domestic sales    33,881,550  40.96    $ 1,387,642 
Export sales     11,003,250  36.72     404,065 

EVA       
Domestic sales     5,335,450  46.71     249,233 
Export sales    83,124,825  41.79     3,474,018 

          
Net revenue        $ 5,514,958 
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Operat ing Cost  

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020  

Schedule 10  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars  

 

Items  Amount 

Raw materials   

Raw materials at the beginning of the 

year 

   $ 18,913 

Incoming materials for current year     2,939,262 

Return of materials in the current year   (  12,124 ) 

Inventory losses   (  646 ) 

Raw materials at the end of the year   (  82,790 ) 

Consumables for the current year     2,862,615 

Direct labor     93,001 

Production overheads (Schedule 11)     1,316,613 

Re-recognized as losses from shutdown   (  52,567 ) 

Manufacturing cost     4,219,662 

Semi-finished products at the beginning of the 

year 

    22,665 

Adjustment of semi-finished products     3,695 

Finished products at the end of the year   (  19,347 ) 

Finished-product cost     4,226,675 

Semi-finished products at the beginning of the 

year 

    263,012 

Promotion sample and research and test 

consumption 

  (  245 ) 

Adjustment of finished products   (  3,695 ) 

Purchase of finished products     25,582 

Finished products at the end of the year   (  158,254 ) 

Cost of goods sold before adjustment     4,353,075 

Spare capacity     52,567 

Profit from recovery of inventory sluggish 

falling price 

  (  408 ) 

Other cost adjustment     646 

Operating cost    $ 4,405,880 
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Manufactur ing Expenses  

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020  

 

Schedule 11  In Thousands o f New Taiwan Dollars)  

 

I t e m s   A m o u n t  

Electricity charges    $ 416,805 

      

Salary (Note 1)     205,385 

      

Consumption of production supplies     198,185 

      

Depreciation      304,115 

      

Others (Note 2)     192,123 

      

    $ 1,316,613 

 

Note 1: Salary refers to the personnel expenses such as pr incipal salary,  

allowance, bonus, pension and labor health insurance.  

Note 2: the amount  of each item does not exceed 5% of the total 

manufactur ing expenses.  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Schedule o f Operat ing Expenses  

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020  

Schedule 12  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars  

 

Items  

Amortization 

expenses  

Management 

expenses  

R & D 

Expenses  Total 

Freight     $ 52,332    $ 35    $ -    $ 52,367 

                     

Salary (Note 1)     19,933     35,404     5,422     60,759 

                     

Management service fees     -     47,678     -     47,678 

                     

Others (Note 2)     15,310     23,319     2     38,631 

                     

Total     $ 87,575    $ 106,436    $ 5,424    $ 199,435 

 

Note 1: salary refers to  personnel expenses such as pr incipal salary,  

allowance, bonus, pension and labor health insurance.  

Note 2: the amount  of each item does not exceed 5% of the total 

manufactur ing expenses.  
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Asia Po lymer Corporat ion (APC)  

Summar y o f Employee ’s Benefits,  Depreciat ion and Amort izat ion Expenses by Funct ion Incurred for the Per iod  

2020 and 2019  

Schedule 13  In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar s 

 

  2020  2019 

  Operating Cost  Operating Expenses  

Other Profit and 

Loss  Total  Operating Cost  Operating Expenses  

Other Profit and 

Loss  Total 

Employee’s benefit expenses                 

Salary expenses    $ 256,096    $ 48,434    $ -    $ 304,530    $ 245,725    $ 48,180    $ -    $ 293,905 

Labor and health insurance     16,276     4,174     -     20,450     16,335     3,528     -     19,863 

Pension fund expenses     10,463     1,502     -     11,965     11,401     1,901     -     13,302 

Remunerations for directors     -     5,064     -     5,064     -     5,604     -     5,604 

Other employee’s benefit 

expenses 

    15,551     1,585     -     17,136     38,571     5,977     -     44,548 

Total     $ 298,386    $ 60,759    $ -    $ 359,145    $ 312,032    $ 65,190    $ -    $ 377,222 

                                         

Depreciation expenses    $ 304,115    $ 443    $ 7,643    $ 312,201    $ 293,476    $ 490    $ 7,644    $ 301,610 

                                         

Amortization expenses    $ -    $ 35    $ -    $ 35    $ -    $ 35    $ -    $ 35 

                                         

 

Notes:  

1.  The number o f employees in this year and the previous year were 242 and 245 respect ively,  of which the number of directors wh o were not  concurrent ly employees were 8 and 8 

respect ively.  

2.  Companies whose shares are listed on the stock exchange or t raded on the OTC market  shall disclose the fo llowing informat ion:  

(1) The average employee benefit  expense for the year was NT$1,513 thousand ( “total employee benefit  expense for the year  -  total director ’s remunerat ion”/ “ number o f 

employees for the year -  number o f directors who were not  concurrent ly employees ”).  

The average employee benefit  expense of the previous year was NT$1,568 thousand ( “total employee benefit  expense of the previous year -  total director ’s remunerat ion”/  

“number o f employees of the previous year -  number of directors who were not  concurrent ly employees ”).  

(2) Average employee payro ll expenses for the year were NT$1,301 t housand (total sa lary expenses for t he year/  “number o f employees for the year -number o f directors who 

were not  concurrent ly employees”).  

Average employee salary expenses for the previous year were NT$1,240 thousand (total salary expenses for the  previous year/ “number of employees for the year -number of 

directors who were not  concurrent ly employees”).  

(3) The average employee salary adjustment  change is 5% ( “average employee salar y cost  of the year - average employee salary cost  of previous year ”/ average emplo yee salar y 

cost  of previous year).  

(4) Not  applicable.  The Company has exercised the funct ions and powers o f supervisor by the Audit  Commit tee  

(5) Remunerat ion po licy for directors and managers o f the Company: a.  The remunerat ion shall be based on the median level of remunerat ion in the same industry and shal l 

consider the reasonabilit y o f the remunerat ion in relat ion to  individual performance,  business performance o f the Company and  future r isks.  b.  Directors and managers should 

not  be guided to engage in behaviors beyond the Company’s r isk appet ite in pursuit of remunerat ion. c.  The proport ion of remunerat ion for short -term performance and the 

t ime o f payment  of var iable salary shall be determined by taking into account  the character ist ics o f the ind ustry and the nature of the Company’s business; The employee 

remunerat ion po licy is formulated by referr ing to  governmental laws and regulat ions,  salar y levels and t rends o f the same ind ustry,  overall economic and industr ial business 

cycle and corporate organizat ional st ructure.  The salary shall be issued according to  the Company ’s “Salary Management  Method”, “Employee Performance Appraisa l 

Method” and “Payment  Method of Allowance for Staff in Charge ” and other provisions.  The Company has a lso formulated the “Year-end Bonus Management  Methods” to  

issue year-end bonus ( including employee remunerat ion) on the basis o f the Company’s pro fit  situat ion and the performance of emplo yees.  

 


